STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE \/\
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES

Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-4451 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4451
Christine M. Tappan. Fax: 603-271-4729 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
Associate Commissioner www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcyf
April 24, 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children,
Youth and Families, to enter into sole source agreements with the vendors listed below for the
provision of juvenile court diversion and delinquency prevention and intervention services, in
an amount not to exceed $74,012, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval,
through March 31, 2019. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Vendor Code Location Amount
e e O | oo | Zetastedl | o
New Hampshire Legal Assistance 154648 élﬁgig?ﬁ:laé%%:eet $22,579
521499

TOTAL: $74,012

Funds to support this request are available in the following account in State Fiscal Year
2018 with the ability to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, without further
approval from the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-421410-79060000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS DEPT OF HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, JUVENILE JUSTICE SERVICES, OJJD

Fiscal Year | Class Title Activity Amount
Code
2018 072-500575 Grants — Federal 42140614 $74,012

TOTAL: $74,012
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EXPLANATION

These agreements are sole source because of the specialized nature of the services,
and the Contractors’ previous work with juvenile court diversion and delinquency prevention
and intervention programs. These programs are in their third year of a three year grant. In the
past two (2) years these programs have provided prevention and intervention services to pre-
adjudicated youth. The original contracts resulted from a competitive bid before they were
allowed to lapse. The Department is requesting sole source contracts to complete the third
and final year.

The intervention of these programs has helped to maintain youth in the community, and
to prevent them from advancing further into the juvenile justice system. The programs will
continue to provide the same level of services as in the past two years.

The three (3) vendors listed above provide juvenile court diversion support to other non-
profit diversion programs throughout the state, delinquency prevention and intervention
services that focus on providing individual and educational support to both youth and their
families, and community-based support for youth up to eighteen (18) years of age, which
assists in the reduction of youth entering or further penetrating the juvenile justice system. The
vendors provide civil legal advocacy and juvenile court diversion services to at-risk juveniles
who may come into contact with the juvenile justice system, including, but not limited to,
advocating at major school disciplinary hearings and treatment team meetings, providing
assistance with obtaining help to address specific educational needs, and conducting contract
hearings to determine alternatives to court sentencing for first-time offenders.

The State of New Hampshire participates in the Federal Office of Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 Formula Grants program. The State Formula Grants
program requires states to pass a portion of funds received to local non-profit agencies in
order to assist those agencies in delivering delinquency prevention and reduction programs.
The grant is administered by the New Hampshire Juvenile Justice Specialist, who works
directly with the State Advisory Group (SAG) as the liaison for the State. New programs are
granted seed money for three (3) years, after which they must find other sources of funding to
support their programs.

Should Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, these vendors would
not have access to the funds necessary to continue their juvenile diversion programs with the
same level of service. These programs are vital to reducing the number of youth entering, or
further penetrating, the juvenile justice system, which would negatively impact the citizens of
New Hampshire.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from United States Department of Justice, Office
of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Formula Grants Program, Catalogue of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) #16.540, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) #2015JFFX0057.
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In the event that Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support these contracts.

Respectfully submitted,

(s

Christine M. Tappan
Associate Commissioner

Approved by: h(
Jefffey A. Meyers

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject: State Advisory Group (SAG) Award for Community Prevention Services (SS-2018-DCYF-07-SAG-02)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name
NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address
23 Wakefield Street
Rochester NH 03867

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number
Number
603-330-7149 05-95-42-421410-79060000-

072-500575

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

March 31, 2019 $30,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
E. Maria Reinemann, Esq.
Director of Contracts and Procurement

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9330

1.11 Contractor $ignatyre
L v
A/ /
\ Ly

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

it € Qedlae Chyiy NN

1.13 Adowledgement: fate of NH

, County of ('-“HJ\L)WO\ijh y

On ‘i ! 1) 2ol % , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily

proven
indicated in block 1.12.

o0 be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity

ige of the Peace

LS le

1.13.1 §i Notary Public or J

[Seal]

DIANE E. CASALE, Notary Pubtic

1.13.2, Name and Title of Notary or Justice NBtfom¥mssion Expires March 12, 2079

Katac g

\ ALS
1.1

AV E
)

1.15_ Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

442%/

([} Urishelospum, P i

wis

1.16—Approval b§ théN.H. Department of Adminisfration/ Division of Personnel (if apphctible)

By:

2

Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

By

Ll/w/lf»

1.18 Approval by the Govertrjd Executive @uncil ) (ij{ applicable)

By:

On;
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Contractor Initials %Z’I(/
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION,

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this A greement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14, INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

Page 3 of 4 ‘
Contractor Initials ! W

Date l/_'(‘g /K



14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("*Workers' Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers” Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers® Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no
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such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials M L/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Advisory Group (SAG) Award for Prevention Services for the Community

Exhibit A

Scope of Services
1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1 The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2 The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.3  The Contractor shall provide juvenile court diversion, delinquency prevention and
intervention services (the Program) that focus on behavioral health and/or
disproportionate minority contact for youth up to eighteen (18) years of age which
assist in the redudtion of youth entering the juvenile justice system.

1.4 For the purposes of this Contract, the Contractor shall be identified as sub-recipient
in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200.330 and 2 CFR 200.331. The
Contractor and sub-recipient will be referred to as Vendor in this Exhibit.

2. Scope of Services

2.1 The Contractor shall employ a Network Coordinator to coordinate assessment,
capacity-building, planning, implementation and evaluation of the NH Juvenile Court
Diversion Network, statewide, and of members’ programs in order to increase:

211 The quality of juvenile court diversion programs.
212 Awareness of juvenile court diversion programs.
2.1.3 Sustainability of juvenile court diversion programs.

2.2 The Contractor shall ensure the Network Coordinator conducts an assessment of
current juvenile court diversion programs, that includes, but is not limited to:

2.2.1 Conducting qualitative assessments of partner sites through physical site
visits to determine program capacity and services in each calendar month.

2.22 Conducting qualitative assessments of state and national juvenile court
diversion programs to determine services they provide.

223 Providing information to NH diversion providers that could be useful in
program planning and implementation.

2.2.4 Maintaining up-to-date knowledge of statewide juvenile court diversion
programs and initiatives.

2.2.5 Developing and maintaining resource lists of judicial, educational, and
community service-based programs and resources.

226 |Identifying potential new juvenile court diversion programs and partners that
would increase juvenile court diversion capacity of the NH Juvenile Court
Diversion Network.

NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network. Exhibit A Contractor Initials: M “ f
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Advisory Group (SAG) Award for Prevention Services for the Community

Exhibit A

2.3  The Contractor shall ensure the Network Coordinator builds capacity for a statewide
network of local juvenile court diversion providers by:

2.3.1 Collaborating with organizations, businesses and community groups to
build public-private partnerships to organize broad-based juvenile court
diversion efforts at the state and local level to achieve NH Juvenile Court
Diversion Network goals.

2.3.2 Coordinating special projects and disseminating information relating to
juvenile court diversion programs and the NH Juvenile Court Diversion
Network.

2.3.3 Facilitating ongoing peer-to-peer network collaboration between juvenile
court diversion providers and related stakeholders.

2.3.4 Ensuring the voices of youth and families impacted by juvenile court
diversion programs are included in decisions made by the NH Juvenile
Court Diversion Network and understood by potential partnering service
providers.

2.3.5 Ensuring the NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network is informed and
engaged with statewide and national juvenile court diversion efforts.

2.3.6 Informing juvenile court diversion advocacy groups of enforcement and
detention issues, specifically the use of community-based services as an
alternative to court or detention.

2.3.7 Planning and facilitating a minimum of three (3) training classes to enhance
the NH Juvenile Court Diversion network knowledge base on how to best
implement diversion strategies.

2.3.8 Providing capacity-building technical assistance to local juvenile court
diversion providers and stakeholders.

2.3.9 Providing stories, data and recommendations, as needed, for outreach,
fundraising and communication strategies to Juvenile court diversion
advocacy groups.

24  The Contractor shall ensure the Network Coordinator oversees the NH Juvenile
Court Diversion Network strategic planning and program coordination to ensure
strategic and project work plans are updated, as needed by:

241 Writing and developing materials for grant applications and program reports
as part of the Contractor's sustainability plan.

242 Making recommendations to state and local leadership on advocacy,
organizing and coordinating opportunities to promote juvenile court
diversion programs and the NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network efforts.

2.4.3 Researching, identifying and writing grant proposals, reports, and related
correspondence for foundations, corporations and government entities.

2.5 The Contractor shall ensure the Network Coordinator oversees the coordination,
continued development and staffing of the NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network
and its various committees by:

NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network Exhibit A Contractor Initials: -
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Advisory Group (SAG) Award for Prevention Services for the Community

Exhibit A

2.6

2.7

2.8

29

2.10

2.1

251 Planning and facilitating NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network meetings
each month, which shall indude but not be limited to:

2.5.2  Wiriting and distributing meeting minutes.
2.5.3 Coordinating follow-up activities, as appropriate.

2.5.4 Attending local team Diversity Minority Contact (DMC) as applicable, when
needed or requested.

2.5.5 Managing the juvenile court diversion program accreditation application,
review and acceptance process.

2.5.6 Conducting internal and external outreach and communication activities
through multiple media sources.

2.5.7 Representing the NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network and its
interests/perspectives with State and local providers.

2.5.8 Reviewing and editing legislative testimony that concerns the NH Juvenile
Court Diversion Network.

2.5.9 Editing and reviewing print materials, including, but not limited to:
2591 Fact sheets.
2592 Infographics.
2593 Issue briefs.

The Contractor shall perform administrative tasks, as needed, to support the NH
Juvenile Court Diversion Network.

The Contractor shall communicate by telephone, e-mail or in person, with
governmental entities, about the use of community-based alternatives to court
and/or sentencing.

The Contractor shall develop, coordinate and maintain the NH Juvenile Court
Diversion Network communications strategy, including, but not limited to:

2.8.1 Media relations.

2.8.2 Publications.

2.8.3 Social media.

2.8.4 \Website maintenance.

The Contractor shall recruit, hire, and supervise interns and/or program volunteers
in order to support campaigns, communications and marketing work, as needed.

The Contractor shall build and maintain communication structures and mechanisms,
with a uniform look, for print and web-based NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network
materials.

The Contractor shall direct the release of information to media contacts, including,
but not limited to:

2.11.1 Scheduling press conferences,
2.11.2 Releasing reports

NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network. Exhibit A Contractor Initials: "W(/« .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Advisory Group (SAG) Award for Prevention Services for the Community

Exhibit A

2.11.3 Responding to media requests.

2.12 The Contractor shall maintain and enhance relationships with local, state and
national organizations working on juvenile court diversion initiatives.

2.13 The Contractor shall ensure the Network Coordinator evaluates and documents
program outcomes to inform best practices and yield evidence to support the NH
Juvenile Court Diversion Network advocacy related to youth court diversion efforts
in the State, including, but not limited to:

2.13.1 Ensuring proper collection of individual and program outcome information to
analyze project effectiveness.

2.13.2 Assisting in collecting one and three year recidivism data to measure long-
term impact.

2.13.3 Providing technical assistance, as needed, for partners using new or
existing data systems.

2.13.4 Providing written and verbal analysis on what is working and not working in
different diversion programs.

2.13.5 Presenting and reporting on NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network activities
at community meetings and conferences.

2.14 The Contractor shall develop and enhance System Data Collection across the State
of New Hampshire.

2.15 The Contractor shall develop capacity in the underserved areas of the State.
2.16 The Contractor shall increase state support of diversion infrastructure.
2.17 The Contractor shall strengthen the quality of Network Programs by;
2.17.1 Conducting site visits among current programs to identify gaps and needs

2.17.2 Working with Community Health Institute to determine first and third year
recidivism across all accredited programs.

2.17.3 Providing program monitoring and feedback to identify opportunities for
improvement.

2.17.4 Conducting outreach to police department and communities that do not
have accredited diversion programs to engage in the Network toward
formalizing their efforts.

2.17.5 Identifying common goals, challenges and opportunities among program
sites to facilitate collaborative planning and technical assistance.

2.17.6 Supporting Network programs’ efforts to secure national public/private
funding for special projects.

2.17.7 Advocating for state support of diversion programs as a key decision point
of the nine points of the juvenile system.

2.17.8 Addressing missed opportunities to refer to diversion by partnering with
schools, School Resource Officers, and regional Substance Misuse
Professionals for system-wide planning.

NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network. Exhibit A Contractor Initials:
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2.17.9 Ensuring member programs have access to training in best practices and
information on latest national research findings.

2.17.10 Building community support for Diversion.

2.17.11 Identifying key stakeholders in underserved areas of the state to introduce
Diversion toward enhancing capacity.

2.17.12 Exploring gender-specific best practice interventions for special populations,
and sharing them with Network partners, including, but not limited to:

2.17.12.1 Youths with individual education plans (IEP).
2.17.12.2 Youths with co-occurring disorders.

2.17.13 Revisiting Challenge Curriculum to reflect today’s concerns around alcohol
and drug issues to ensure maximum effectiveness.

2.17.14 Developing resource tools for Network members to offer on web site.

2.18 The Contractor shall develop a communication plan which promotes awareness of
these services.

2.19 The Contractor shall develop a plan to address the gap in services provided to
youth participating in at-risk behaviors or struggling with behavioral health disorders
and/or drug and alcohol use.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1 The Contractor shall provide a narrative summary of activities conducted in Section
2, including, but not be limited to:

3.1.1 Descriptions of activities conducted, including, but not limited to dates,
times, duration and the number of participants in each activity.

3.1.2 Barriers and challenges experienced by the Contractor during the quarter.
3.1.3 A plan to address barriers and challenges for the next quarter.

3.1.4 Backup documentation detailing actual expenditures for approved contract
related activities.

3.1.5 Copies of all grant proposals.
3.1.6 Copies of all program reports.
3.2 The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports, on or before:

3.2.1  April 30th for all activities performed from January 1st through March 31st
of the current year.

3.2.2  July 31st for all activities performed from April 1st through June 30th of the
current year.

3.2.3 October 31st for all activities performed from July 1st through September
31st of the current year.

3.24 January 31st for all activities performed from October 1st through
December 31st of the previous year.

NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network Exhibit A Contractor Initials: &W
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4. Performance Measures
41 The Contractor Shall:

411 Track the number of youths who are provided service through the NH
Juvenile Court Diversion Network.

4.1.2 Measure the percentage of youths who complete the diversion program.

41.3 Track the number of referrals from each source to the NH Juvenile Court
Diversion Network.

414 Measure the percentage of recidivism among youths served by the NH
Juvenile Court Diversion Network, including, but not limited to:

4141 Recidivism at one year.
4.14.2 Recidivism at three years.

5. Deliverables

5.1 The Contractor shall provide services for each youth admitted referred to the NH
Juvenile Diversion Network program, including, but not limited to:

5.1.1 Conducting an assessment to determine individual strengths and
weaknesses.

5.1.2 Developing a contract based on individual needs.
5.1.3 Offering community service opportunities.
5.1.4 Providing educational resources on the topic of substance abuse.

52  The Contractor shall develop and distribute printed materials that explain and
support the Program through the NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network

53 The Contractor shall maintain a website for the NH Juvenile Court Diversion
Network (http://nhcourtdiversion.org/), to provide information about the Program,
including, but not limited to:

5.3.1 Informationa! video segments.

5.3.2 A list of organizations that participate in The NH Juvenile Court Diversion
Network.

5.3.3 Information for organizations about accreditation requirements.
5.3.4 Outreach planning tools.
5.3.5 Contact Information.

54  The Contractor shall ensure that all programs in the NH Juvenile Court Diversion
Network maintain office hours for the purpose of meeting with clients, after 4 pm, for
a minimum of six (6) hours each week.

5.6  The Contractor shall verify that all programs that are member organizations of the
NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network

5.5.1 Meet the accreditation standards, including, but not limited to:

H ;
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5.5.1.1 Maintaining status as either a 502(c) (3) non-profit organization,
or as a governmental organization.

5.5.1.2 Maintaining a written policy manual and/or employee handbook
5.5.1.3 Having a governing body or board of directors.
5.5.2 Maintain an application or resume on file for each employee or volunteer.

5.6.3 Conduct criminal background checks for all staff, subcontractor employees,
and volunteers who have direct contact with clients, no later than ten days
from the approval date of the Contract or any amendments thereafter,
including, but not limited to, completing a New Hampshire Department of
Safety Criminal Record Release Authorization (Form ID #DSSP256).

5.5.4 Secure and check references for all volunteers.
5.5.5 Provide training or orientation for all new staff and volunteers.

5566 Follow written procedures for transferring diversion cases to other
jurisdictions or diversion programs.

5.5.7 Maintain records that include, but are not limited to:
5.5.7.1 A written juvenile court diversion process.
5.56.7.2 Wiritten eligibility guidelines for participation in The Program.
5.5.7.3 Diversion participation forms.
5.56.7.4 Confidential release of information forms.
5.5.7.5 Signed diversion confract for all clients.
5.5.7.6 Regularly updated schedules of fees.

5.56.7.7 An annual operating budget that is approved by the governing
body.

5.5.7.8 Signed diversion confracts for all program clients.
5.5.7.9 An annual report on organizational activities.
5.5.7.10 A copy of each case closing or completion letter.

5.6.8 Have a written process for participants who fulfill contractual obligations
and exit the program.

5.5.9 Provide written notification of completion to all referral sources.
5.56.10 Provide a list of community resources to the parents of each referred client.

NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network. Exhibit A Contractor Iniﬂallzwf/‘ ;o
$8-2018-DCYF-07-SAG-02 Page 7 of 7 Date: _af-i



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Advisory Group (SAG) Award for Community Prevention Services

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

This contract is funded with funds from the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #16.540,
U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention in providing services
pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services. The contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A,
Scope of Services in compliance with funding requirements.

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation on Form P37,
General Provisions Block 1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A,
Scope of Services.

2. Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis only for actual expenditures.
Expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line item budgets shown in Exhibits B-1.
3. Payment for services shall be made as follows:
31 The Contractor will submit quarterly reports as specified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services,

Sections 3, with an invoice for reimbursement of actual expenses incurred during the
quarter, for a total of four (4) invoices per year. The State shall make payment to the
Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for Contractor services
provided pursuant to this Agreement.

3.2 Invoices and reports identified in Section 3.1 must be submitted to:

Pamela Sullivan

Juvenile Justice Specialist

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division for Children, Youth and Families

1056 North River Road

Manchester, NH 03104

4, Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified in
Exhibit A, Section 3.
5. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than sixty (60) days after the Contract ends.

Failure to submit the invoice, and accompanying documentation could result in nonpayment.

6. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or
Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not
been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at full
capacity at no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract period.

8. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to
transfer the funds within the budget and within the price limitation, can be made by written
agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

New Hampshire Juvenile Court Diversion Network Exhibit B Contractor Initials: /1/0 .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1.

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established,;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials MW

0627114 Page 1 of 5 Date 1 {Y :



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: in addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all tedgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAQ standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment

Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has

received a singie award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
A
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardiess of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Cettification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistieblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.808.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistieblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the F ederal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’s performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles estabiished in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is

replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

Exhibit C-1 — Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractor Initials “ ('VL/
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1.  Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1.  The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5.  Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D — Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials Lﬂé
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:

$o 16 (b Lhﬂ/
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

IS e ——
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or defaulit.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

"o« ENTH

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and

“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and

Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the

attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal {contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and

Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Reguiations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

o 165-/§ wwe—"—
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.
a. ‘Breach’” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. ‘Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. ‘HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIIl, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually |dentifiable Health
information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j-  “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Heaith information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials NWL/
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“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

“Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHLI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
i As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
il For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Natification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PH! until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

1y "
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHi and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHi, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfilt its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so fong as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regqulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

C. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit |.

Depaﬁn\ent of Health and Human Services

1\.‘« Auvu\:\k (o ¥ TRV gipn ]\L’(w. |G

Name of the Contractor

)

Sigiature of Authorized Representative

Wl € Yodler’

Nameof Authorized Repre'sentative
< 7 0
S ot (STecr”

Title of Authorized Representative

- 29-15

Name of Authorized Representative

Chey  pNeqcmy
Title of AutHorized Representative

4191y

Date

3/2014

Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SPPNoRLN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

SAKRN Mé//\/

Date Name: NiaW & Podle/

Title: ;
Chuiv , N4IOD
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initialsu
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As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: (0" /- 959-92 50

2. Inyour business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

[4 NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount;
Name: Amount;
Name: Amount;
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials /Z/ML/

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance /,'; 72
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 2 of 2 Date _ 7~ /J



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. “Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, “ Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. “Computer Security Incident” shall have the same meaning “Computer Security
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. “Confidential Information” or “Confidential Data” means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFIl), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. “End User’” means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. “Incident” means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. “Open Wireless Network” means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire’s Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. “Personal Information” (or “PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually |dentifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. “Protected Health Information” (or “PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of “Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

|. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

Il. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. if End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application’s encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

lll. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-maiware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerabilty of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thity (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycie, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardiess of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

y
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (6 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/'vendor/index htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State’s Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This includes a
confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

¢. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFl are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section |V above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State’s Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency’s documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1.

2.
3.
4

Identify Incidents;
Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;
Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

WH—
V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials

DHHS Information
Security Requirements .
Page 8 of 9 Date 9/ /J /‘{



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

V. PERSONS TOCONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov

Wil
V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials _
DHHS Information

Security Requirements L// // /d '
Page 9 of 9 Date_ / [0 '



State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE
COURT DIVERSION NETWORK, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New
Hampshire on July 11, 1994. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 211850
Certificate Number : 0004078891

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 10th day of April A.D. 2018.

oLk

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1, Jessica Klingerman do hereby certify that:

(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. | am a duly elected Officer of New Hampshire Juvenile Court Diversion Network, Inc.

(Agency Name)
2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on May 21, 2014
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the Chairperson of the Board of Directors

(Title of Contract Signatory)
is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the _18" day of __April 2018.
(Date Contract Signed)

4, Nicole E. Rodler is the duly elected Chairperson of the Board of Directors
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

%MWM/WW

(Signature of the Elgffted Officer)
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of H 2\\510 tv o 5»\

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this lb day of A'(-’i“1 , 20 8 ,
By \\fiw\t E. /Roc\(t\r .
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)
@mm CuuQ(

(Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

(INOTARY SEAL)

3'1‘1{ (Y

Commission Expires:

DIANE E. CASALE, Notary Public
My Commission Expires March 12, 2019

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005
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ACORD
V

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

NHJUVEN-01 SLAMERE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
05/10/2017

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsementys).

PRODUCER
Davis & Towle Morrill & Everett, Inc.
115 Airport Road

Concord, NH 03301

gNTACT Stephanie Lamere, CIC
(AIC, No, Ext): (603) 715-9740

E-MAIL

[ T8 1o)(603) 225-7935
dlHEss: slamere@davistowle.com ﬂ

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
nsurer A : Philadelphia insurance Company 23850
INSURED INSURER B :
NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network INSURER C :
10 Ferry St, Ste 333 INSURER D :
Concord, NH 03301
INSURERE :
INSURER F : I
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

R TYPE OF INSURANCE oo oo POLICY NUMBER poLICY EFF | POLICY EXP | LIMITS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
| ctamsmaoe [ X | occur PHPK1618635 04/30/2017 | 04/30/2018 | PAMAGETORENTED s 100,000
MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5'000
: PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: ‘ GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
X | Poicy FES Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 2,000,000
OTHER: $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY _&%%S'NGLE LMt s 1,000,000
i ANY AUTO PHPK1618635 04/30/2017 | 04/30/2018 | 5ODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
i OWNED SCHEDULED i
AUTOS ONLY A TOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| §
HIRED PROPERTY DAMAGE
X AUTOS ONLY P(-J%Vg}{JLY | {Per acadent’ $
! | $
‘ UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ |
Lo EXCESS LiAB ‘ CLAIMS-MADE | AGGREGATE s
[ DED ! [ RETENTION § 1 s
T T
WORKERS COMPENSATION : TPER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY .y | [ STATUTE ! ER
vANY PROPRIETORPARTNER/EXECUTIVE | E.L EACH ACCIDENT .S
| RFTISERIMEMBER EXCLU N/A |
andatory in ! E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $
If yes, describe under i
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below ‘ E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §
T 1
i
‘ |
|
|
i i !
\ ‘ 3
i ; | i

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire, Department of Health & Human
Services

190 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

I
ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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ACORD
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

NHJUVEN-01 DBEAUDOIN
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

04/18/2018

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONIACT Donna P. Beaudoin, CPCU
?f%",:.f;; I?tvggalv(ljorrill & Everett, Inc. &';8,",550’ Ext): (603) 715-9734 l (F,f‘,é No):(603) 225-7935
Concord, NH 03301 EMAL  dbeaudoin@davistowle.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
iNsurer A : Philadelphia Insurance Company 23850
INSURED INSURER B :
NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network INSURER C :
10 Ferry St, Ste 333 INSURER D -
Concord, NH 03301
INSURER E :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR QTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE s e POLICY NUMBER (DB TYY) | (MDD LIMITS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
| cLamsmape | X | occur PHPK1797444 04/30/2018 | 04/30/2019 | PAMACE TORENTED o |5 100,000
| MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5,000
L PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
X | PoLicy D FESr D Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 2,000,000
OTHER: $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY %2“ché{‘é§'r?tS'NGLE LiMIT $ 1,000,000
ANY AUTO PHPK1797444 04/30/2018 | 04/30/2019 | BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
RUTESonLy ROTGSUED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
X[ iRony | X] AR ORI
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
ﬂ EXCESS LIAB }7 CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
} DED ’ [ RETENTION $ $
X’%‘éﬁ’éﬁ&%’ﬂ?'ﬁ&ﬁtﬁ’% YN ShRure | |2
e [,
EE?CS?S%."C‘,’ﬁ L(J)nréj OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health & Human Services
190 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WiILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

%I"’W\Q 4 (SJ.A.‘-.)%"IO

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



10 Ferry Street, Suite 333
Concord, NH 03301

Office: 603-225-9540 x104
www.NHCourtDiversion.org

s NH JUVENILE COURT DIVERSION NETWORK

ErsjoN NETW,

April 18, 2018

Contracts and Procurement

NH DHHS, Brown Building

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

To Whom It May Concern:

Please note that since we have no employees (I am a part time contracted Coordinator), our
liability insurance provider indicated that we do not need to carry Worker’s Compensation
insurance.

The ACORD Certificate is included for liability insurance as required.

Thank you for your assistance.

Sincerely,

%ﬁxwk
Betsy H e, MA

Coordinator



NH JUVENILE COURT DIVERSION NETWORK

MISSION STATEMENT

PURPOSE

To promote and support community based alternatives to the formal court process that
integrate restorative justice practices, promote positive youth development, and reduce
juvenile crime and recidivism.

OBJECTIVES

e Promote principles of Restorative Justice

e To advocate for each member program and support the community based
individuality of each

o Utilize evidence based programming and best practices

e Promote principles of Restorative Justice in shaping juvenile law and policy in NH

e Promote the use of common data across diversion programs to substantiate
outcomes

e Toaid in maintaining high educational standards by sponsoring joint trainings and
seminars



Office of the New Hampshire Attorney General Charitable Trusts Unit
33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301-6397

ANNUAL FILING FEE: $75.00

Make check payable to:
State of New Hampshire
ANNUAL REPORT CERTIFICATE
New Hampshire Juvenile Court Diversion Network, Inc. December 31, 2016
Organization Name Fiscal Year End
Jessica Klingerman 211850
In Care of State Registration #
10 Ferry Street, Concord, NH 03301
Address City State Zip

Under the penalties of perjury set forth in RSA 641:1-3, I declare that | have examined the attached
report, including accompanying schedules and statements and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is true,
correct and complete.

11/i5 / /7
ignatuge of Date
PRESIDENT, TREASURER OR TRUSTEE
Jessica K))ngernran Treasures
(Print or Type) Name of Officer/Trustee Title

THE SIGNATURE OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR IS NOT ACCEPTABLE. (If the organization
does not have the office of “President” or “Treasurer”, please attach an explanation or definition of the authority
vested in the signator.)

STATEOF N A&~
COUNTY OF /#2-rmesk

On this the (5 A day of Mov ,20 L7 _before me personally appeared the above-named
officer or trustee who acknowledged himself/herself to be the officer/trustee, President, Treasurer of the above-
named organization and took oath or affirmed that the attached report including accompanying schedules and
statements is to the best of his/her knowledge and belief true, correct and complete.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

My Commission Expires: / Z < //

Nmary Public

SHARON R. CUFFE, Notary Public
Stats of New Hampshire
My Commission Expires October 11, 2022



OFFICE OF THE NEW HAMPSHIRE ATTORNEY GENERAL
CHARITABLE TRUSTS UNIT
33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301-6397

MUST BE COMPLETED
AND ATTACHED TO FILING

APPENDIX TO ANNUAL REPORT

Name of Organization;_New Hampshire Juvenite Court Diversion Network, Inc.

1. Is there currently a conflict of interest policy in effect? Yes X No
A Conflict of Interest Policy is required by law. (see RSA 7:19, IT)

If No, please provide explanation for not adopting a Conflict of Interest Policy (attach extra pages
if necessary):

2. Did any officer, Director, Trustee, or member of his/her immediate family obtain a pecuniary benefit
from the organization in the last year other than reasonable compensation for services of an executive
director, or expenses incurred in connection with his/her official duties? (see RSA 7:19-a)

Yes No_ X

If Yes, complete the following:

A. Was any real estate transaction involved? Yes No
B. Was a loan made to any director, officer or trustee? Yes No
C. Was a pecuniary benefit paid in excess of $5007? Yes No

If Yes, attach copy of Meceting Minutes.

D. Was a pecuniary benefit paid in excess of §5,0007 Yes No
If Yes, attach a copy of each of the following:
e Public Notice made pursuant to RSA 7:19-a, I (d)
e Meeting Minutes
¢ Employment Contract

E. Provide a list of each pecuniary benefit transaction invelving a director, officer, trustee or member of
their immediate family. Include name(s) of recipient(s) and amount(s) of benefit(s) as required under
RSA 7:19-a, Il (c) and RSA 7:28 (attach extra pages if necessary).

Name of Recipient: Nature & Amount of Benefit:

Name of Recipient: Nature & Amount of Benefit:

NOTE: The Director of Charitable Trusts may request copies of all contracts, payment records, vouchers and
financial records or documents involving a director, officer, trustee or member of the immediate family as

authorized under RSA 7:24.
Amended 3/15/2013



NHJUV 11/14/2017 12:00 PM

rom 990

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Intermal Revenue Code (except private foundations)

OMB No. 1545-0047

2016

Depanment of the Treasury » Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public. Open to Public
internal Revenue Service P Information about Form 990 and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection

A _Forthe 2016 calendar year, or tax year beginning

.and ending

B Checkif applicavie; C Name of organization NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE COURT D Employer identification number
[ ] Address change DIVERSION NETWORK, INC
D Name cha Doing business as 02-0458455
nge Number and streel (or P O box if mail is not delivered to sireet address) Roomv/suite E Telephone number
(] it retum 10 FERRY STREET, SUITE 333 603-225-5445
Final return/ City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code
terminated
D o CONCORD NH 03301 G Gross recsipis $ 227,198
d relum F Name and address of principal officer.
D Application pending JESS ICA KLINGE AN H(a) Is this a group retur for subordinates? D Yes No
10 FERRY STREET H{b) Ave ail subordinates includes?  |__] Yes || No
CONCORD NH O 3 3 O 1 if “No," attach a list. (see instructions)

| Tax-exempt status:

Rl 501(c)(3) (—l 501(c)  (

_) insertno) ﬂ 4947(a)(1) or

527

4 _wensite: » NHCOURTDIVERSION.ORG

H(c) Group exemption number |

K Form of organization: m Corporalion ﬂ Trust [_1 Association r-l Other B>

] L Yearofformation: 1 994

l M State of legal domicile: NH

_Part] Summary
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activites:
g .. THE NETWORK'S MISSION IS TO CREATE A MORE EFFECTIVE WAY TO ASSIST LOW-RISK
8 . JUVENILE OFFENDERS WHO DO NOT BELONG IN COURT. . . ...
3 S
8 2 Check this box P if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
o5 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part Vi, line 1a) o 3 5
8| 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Pat Vi, tinett) 4 5
‘:; § Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2016 (Part V, line2a) = 5 0
E 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) 6 5
7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VI, column (C), ine12 7a 0
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 890-T, line34 .. . . .. ... ... ... ... NEUUTIR 7b 0
Prior Year Current Year
o | 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIll, line th) 6,901 227,154
2| 9 Program service evenue Part Vil tne2g) T T 0
2 | 10 Investmentincome (Part VIII, column (A), tines 3,4,and7d) 4
Z 1 41 Other revenue (Part VIl column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9¢, 10¢c,and 11¢) 0
12_Total revenue - add lines B through 11 (must equal Part Viii, column (A), line 12) . 6,901 227,198
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines1-3) 153,754
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), lined4) 0
4 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) 0
2 | 16aProfessional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line11e) 0
§- b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line25» o
W 17 Other expenses (PartIX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24¢) 7,913 61,960
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line25) 7,913 215,714
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 fromline 12 ~1,012 11,484
58 Beginning of Current Year End of Year
$5 20 Totalassets(PatX,inet6) 9,759 166,995
<2 21 Totalliabilties (PartX, ire26) 2,406 148,158
= 2| 22 Netassets or fund balances. Subtractline21fromline20 . ... ... . . _ 1,353 18,837
Part Signature Block
Under penaities of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.
Slgn } Signature of officer Date
Here } JESSICA KLINGERMAN TREASURER
Type or print name and titie 9 /
Print/Type preparer's name 7‘{ . ml% Date Check D if] PTIN
Paid ANTHONY J. ENGALDO, CPA 11/14/17| sett-employed | p00158881
Preparer |civ.iame b SEELYE & SCHULZ @A) <€PA Fmsend _ 02-0413305
Use Only 451 AMHERST ST STE 204
Firm's adoress D NASHUA, NH 03063-1200 Phone no. 603-886—-1900

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions)

m Yes I_] No

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.
DAA

Form 990 (2015)



NHJUV 1171472017 12:00 PM

Form 990 (2016) NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE COQURT 02-0458455 Page 2
Part HI Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
® Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lihe in this Part 11l . L , D

1 Briefly describe the organization's m1551on
THE NETWORK'S MISSION 'IS TO CREATE A MORE EFFECTIVE WAY TO ASSIST LOW-RISK

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Form 990 0r 80-E2? ... . . . PRSP - [ ves ] no
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
Services? .. [ ves X o
If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4 Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c){(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and atlocations to others,

the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code: } (Expenses $ 153, 754 including grants of $ 153,754 ) (Revenue $ 226,394

4d Other program services (Describe in Schedule O.)
{Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
4e Total program service expenses P 153,754
DAA Form 990 (2016)




NHJIUV 11/1472017 12:00 PM

Form 990 (2016) NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE COURT 02-0458455 Page 3
Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules
* ¢ Yes | No

1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? /f “Yes,”

complete Schedule A 1] X

Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)? 2 X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to

candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part! 3 X
4  Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h)

election in effect during the tax year? If “"Yes,” complete Scheduie C, Parti 4 X

5§ Is the organization a section 501(c)(4). 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197 If “Yes," complete Schedule C,
Pat 5 X

6 Did the orgamzatlon maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors
have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If

‘Yes,"complete Schedule D, Part! 6 X
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservatlon easement, including easements to preserve open space,

the environment, historic 'and areas, or historic structures? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule O, Partyi 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? /f “Yes,”

complete Schedule D, PartIll 8 X

9  Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a
custodian for amounts not fisted in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or

debt negotiation services? If “Yes,"” complete Schedule D, Parttv 9 X
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted
endowments, permanent endowments, or quasi-endowments? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Partv. 10 X

11 If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is “Yes,” then complete Schedule D, Parts VI,
VI, VIll, IX, or X as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? /f "Yes,"

complete Schedule D, Part VI B ELE X
b Did the organization report an amount for mvestments—-other securltles in Part X, line 12 that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, fine 167 If “Yes," complete Schedule D, Partvti .~~~ 11b X
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 /f "Yes," complete Schedule D, PartVili 11¢ X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X, line 167 If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IX 11d X
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 257 If "Yes, " complete Schedule D, PartX 11e X
f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule D, PartX = 1"t X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If “Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Parts Xl and Xl . . . . ... |12a X
b Was the organization included in consolldated mdependent audlted ﬁnanclal statements for the tax year'? II
“Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts X! and Xl is optional 12b X
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(AXii)? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule£ 13 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? 14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking,
fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts landtv 14b X
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or
for any foreign organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts llandtv 15 X
16  Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts lllandtv. ... 16 X
17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on
Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part | (see instructions) 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on
Part VIlI, lines 1c and 8a? If “Yes,“ complete Schedule G, Partil 18 X
19  Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIl!, line 9a?
If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part il . ... ... e e e 1 19 X

Form 990 (2016)
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Form 990 2016y NEW HAMPSHTRE JUVENILE COURT 02-0458455 Page 4
Part ¥ Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)
Co : Yes | No
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If “Yes,” complete Schedule H 20a X
b if “Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to thls return7 ............................ 20b
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Partsfandtl 21 | X
22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part iX, column (A), line 2? If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts | and Il 22 X

23  Did the organization answer “Yes” to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the
organization's current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated
employees? /f "Yes,”complete Schedule J 23 X

24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding pnncnpal amount of more than
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 If “Yes,” answer lines 24b

through 24d and complete Schedule K. If "No,"go to line 252 24a X
Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exceptlon'7 ............................. 24b
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? 24c
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of” issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? 24d
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? if "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part/ 25a X

b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 980-EZ?
H "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part! 25b X
26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any
current or former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or
disqualified persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Partyf L2686 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee
substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled
entity or family member of any of these persons? /f "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Pttt 27 X

28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L,
Part IV instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

a A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Perttv. 28a X
b A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? /f “Yes, " complete
SChedUIe L Part Iv ...................................................................................... 28b X
c An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof)
was an officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Partiv. . 28¢ X
29  Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If “Yes,” complete ScheduteM 29 X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified
conservation contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedule M 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If “Yes,” complete Schedule N,
Part l ............................................................................................................................. 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer mare than 25% of |ts net assets? If "Yes,
complete Schedule N, Part il 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Pert! 33 X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Parts i, Iil,
or IV’ and Part V, Iine 1 ..................................................................................................... 34 X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? L - | 35a X
b i "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a
controlied entity within the meaning of section 512(b){13)7 /f "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line2 35b
36  Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable
related organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line2 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R,
POrtVI 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part Vi, lines 11b and
19? Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O. 38 | X

Form 990 (2016)
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Part vV Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in thisPartVv.. . ... ... .. . U
Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable 1a | 1
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicabe 1b 0
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and
reportable gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners? 1¢
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return 2a 0
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? 2b
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions)
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? 3a X
b !f"Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If “No” to line 3b, provide an explanation in Scheduleo0 3b
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority
over, a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial
accoun)? 4 X
b If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country: B
See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts
(FBAR).
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the taxyear> 5a X
Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? Sb X
¢ If“Yes”toline 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T2 5¢
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? 6a X
b If“Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or
gifts were not tax deductible? ... ... . 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods
and services provided to the payor? 7a
b [f“Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? 7b
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was
required to file Form 82827 7c
d If"Yes,” indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year L I 7d l
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? 7e
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? 7f
g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectuai property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? 79
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section4966? 9a
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? Sb
10  Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIl line12 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club faciltes =~ 10b
11 Section 501(c}{12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or sharehotders 11a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due or received fromthem.) 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10412 12a
b If“Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year ... .. ... . ... | 12b |
13  Section 501{c)(29) qualified nonprofit heaith insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state» = 13a
Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which
the organization is licensed to issue qualified healthplans 13b
c Enter the amount of reserves On hand ......................................................... 13c
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? .~~~ 14a X
b If"Yes,” has it filed 8 Form 720 to report these payments? /f "No, * provide an explanation in Schedule O . ... ........ ... ...... . {14b
DAA Form 990 (2016)
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Page 6

Part Vi

Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" responise to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a “No”

response lto line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Scheduie O. See instructions.

XL

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V!

Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes | No
1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the taxyear [1a 5
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or
if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar
committee, explain in Schedule O.
b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent 1| 5
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with
any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? 2 X
3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct
supervision of officers, directors, or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? 3 X
4  Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4 X
§  Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? 5 X
6  Did the organization have members or stockholders? 6 X
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint
one or more members of the governing body? 7a X
b Are any govemance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members,
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? 7b X
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the foliowing
a Thegovemingbody? g8a | X
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governingbody? 8b | X
9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part Vii, Section A, who cannot be reached at
the organization's mailing address? /f “Yes, " provide the names and addresses in Schedule O . . L 9 X
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not requrred by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes | No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? 10a X
b If “Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? . ... ... ... .. ... ... 10b
11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? | 11a X
b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written confiict of interest policy? /f ‘No,"go to line 13 =~ 12a] X
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? [ 12b X
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? /f “Yes,”
describe in Schedule O how thiswasdone 12| X
13  Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? 13 X
14  Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? 14 X
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management officiat 15a X
b Other officers or key employees of the organization 156 X
If “Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions).
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or simitar arrangement
with a taxable entity during the year? 16a X
b if“Yes," did the organization follow a wntten policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization's exempt status with respect to such arrangements? . i 16b
Section C. Disclosure
17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required tobe filed®» NH
18  Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)(3)s only)
available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
D QOwn website D Another's website Upon request D Other (explain in Schedule O)
19 Describe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and
financial statements available to the public during the tax year.
20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records: P
JESSICA KLINGERMAN 10 FERRY STREET
CONCORD NH 03301 603-225-5445
DAA Form 990 (2016)



NHJUV 11/14/2017 1200 PM

Form 990 (2016) NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE COURT 02-0458455

Page 7

Pay

Independent Contractors

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this PartNVIL .

Vil Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and

U

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization's tax year.

o List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardiess of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

e List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee."

e List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations.

e List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than

$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

e List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

List persons in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest
compensated employees; and former such persons.

Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

{A) 8) C) @ (E) (F)
Name and Title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per {do not check more than one compensation compensation from amount of
week box, unless person is both an from related other
(list any officer and a director/lrustee) the organizalions compensation
hours for S =T = X< Tex] = organization (W-2/1089-MiSC) from the
related a 3 §. g & (3& ‘3’ (W-2/1099-MISC}) organization
organizations 25; = S 2 28| and related
belowdotted |3 & ] s |8g| organizations
lina) gl 5 3| 3
$ g
() JESSICA KLINGERNAN
e 5.00
TREASURER 0.00 [X X 0 0 0
(22ELISABETH BROWN
] 1.000
VICE CHAIRPERSON 0.00 [X X 0 0 0
() KAREN KERSTING
) 1.00
SECRETARY 0.00 [X X 0 0 0
(4 DIANE CASALE
o ]...1.00
DIRECTOR 0.00 [X 0 0 0
(s NICOLE RODLER
SO UP U PURRPION DU 2.00
CHAIRPERSON 0.00 X X 0 0 0
(6)
(M
(8)
(9)
(10)
(11)
DAA Form 990 (2016)
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Form 990 (2016) NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE COURT 02-0458455 Page 8
Part VI Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(A) (8) (%] () (E) (F)
Name and ttle Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimaled
hours per {do not check more than one compensation compensation from amount of
week box, unless person is both an from related other
(list any ofticer and a directoritrustee) the organizations compansation
hours for 25l s ol =2 = organization {W-2/1099-MISC) rrorp lh_a
related n% alx18 g‘zzsr g {W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations | g&| E g g |22] 3 and related
below dotted §§ § 2 83 o organizations
-] § §
1b Sub-total . . ... 4
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part Vi, SectionA . ... P
d_ Total(addlines1ibandi1e) . ... . . ... . ... ... >
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization » 0
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual 3 X
4 For anyindividual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and refated organizations greater than $150,0007? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
IAIVIUAT 4
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated arganization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule J for suchperson . ... . .. 5
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.
A B C
Name and ) dd Descvipu'cgn 27( services Coméin)saﬁon

2  Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who
received more than $100,000 of compensation from the organization »

DAA

Form 990 (2016)
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Part Vill  Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line inthis Part VIl . . . . ... ‘ D
(A) (B) ) (D)
Total revenue Related or Unvelated Revenue
exempt business excluded from tax
function revenue under sections
revenue 512-514
g«g 1a Federated campaigns | 1a
& g b Membership dues 1b 800
;!_f“ ¢ Fundraising events ic
©.8| d Related organizations 1d
‘U:;:_E_ @ Goverament grants (contributions) 1ie 221,394
.g'g f Al other contributions, gifts, grants,
é g and similar amounts not included above 4f 5,000
To| @ Noncash contributions included in lines ta-1f. $
8§ h TotalLAddlnesta—tf ... ... .. > 227,194
s Busn, Code
S| 22
€| »
3
g c
P d
g e
=4 f
o g >
3 Investment income {including dividends, interest,
and other similar amounts) > 4 4
4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds P
5 Royallies ... ... ... >
{i) Real {it) Personai
6a Gross rents
b Less: rental exps.
C Rental inc. or {loss)
d Netrentalincomeor{loss) ... ... ... ... ... .. ... »
7a  Gross amount fiom (i) Securities (ii) Other
sales of assels
other than inventory}
b Less: costor other
basis & sales exps.
¢ Gain or (loss)
d Netgainor(loss) ... ... ... ... .. ... >
o | 8a Grossincome from fundraising events
| omwomgs
é of contributions reported on line 1c).
u SeePart!V,line18 . a
£ | b Less: directexpenses b
© ¢ Net income or (loss) from fundraising events .. ... .. >
9a Gross income from gaming activities.
SeePart IV, line19 a
b Less: direct expenses b
¢ Netincome or (loss) from gaming activities .......... >
10a Gross sales of inventory, less
returns and allowances a
b Less:costofgoodssold b
¢ Netincome or (Joss) from sales of inventory ... . >
Misceilaneous Revenue Busn. Code
11a .....................................
b N I T I TP
c . e T R I
d Aliotherrevenue .. ... ... ... .
e Total. Add fines 11a-11d >
12 Total revenue. See instructions. .. ... ... ... . ... » 227,198 4 0

DAA

Form 990 (2016)
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Part IX

Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX

.(,c).

Do not include amounts rep orted on lines 6b, Total t‘eel))enses Progia(:)ssrvice Managemsnt and Funé?a)ising
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part Vil expenses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to domeslic organizations
and domestic govemments. See Part IV, line21 1 5 3 7 754 153 7 754
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line22 =~
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV, lines 15and 16
4 Benefits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees
6 Compensation not included above, to disquaiified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c}3)B) =
7 Other salaries andwages
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions)
8 Other employee benefits
10 Payrolitaxes ...
11 Fees for services (non-employees):
a Management e
b legal .
¢ Accounting
d Lobbying ...
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17
f Investment managementfees
g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, st line 11g expenses on Schedule 0.)
12 Advertising and promotion
13 Officeexpenses 889 889
14 Information technology 215 215
16 Royaltes =
16 Occupancy 4,825 4,825
7 Tevel 3,660 3,660
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 725 125
20 Interest
21 Paymentsto affiliates
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization
25 nsurance 470 470
24 Other expenses. ltemize expenses not covered
above (List miscellaneous expenses in line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
{A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.)
a GRANT COORDINATOR 50,023 50,023
b TELEPHONE . 660 660
¢ . OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES 356 356
¢ FILING FEE 105 105
e Allotherexpenses 32 32
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 2de 215 7 714 153 7 754 61 ’ 960 0
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the
organization reported in column (B} joint costs
from a combined educational campaign and
fundraising solicitation. Check here ¥ D if
following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) . ... .. ... ...
DAA Form 990 (2016)
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Form 990 (2016) NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE COURT 02-0458455 Page 11
Part X Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Pat X . L {_l_
(A) 8
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash—non-interestbearing 1
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 9,759 2 58,160
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 3 98,942
4 Accounts receivable,net o 4
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors,
trustees, key emplioyees, and highest compensated employees.
Complete Part Il of Schedule L ... ... ... .. ... 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under section
4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing employers and
sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary employees’ beneficiary
¥ organizations (see instructions). Complete Part |l of Schedule L 6
3|7 Notesandlosnsrecevabenet 7
<| 8 inventoriesforsaleoruse ... ... 8
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 9 2,393
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or
other basis. Complete Part V!l of Schedule D 10a
b Less: accumuiated depreciation 10b 10c
11  Investments—publicly traded securies "
12 Investments—other securities. See Part IV, line11 12
13 Investments—program-related. See Part IV, tinet1 13
14 Intangbleassets . . 14
15 Other assets. See Part IV, fine11 15 7,500
16__Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (mustequaltine34) .. ............... ............ 9,759| 16 166,995
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 17 2,239
18 Grantspayable 18 110,795
19 Deferredrevenve 2,406| 19 35,124
20 Tax-exemptbond fiabilities 20
21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of ScheduleD 21
9 22 Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors,
3‘_5" trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, and
:."_% disqualified persons. Complete Part Il of ScheduleL 22
- |23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third patties 23
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrefated third parties 24
25 Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
ofSchedule D . 25
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 . ... ... .. ... .. ... .. .. .. 2,406i 26 148,158
Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here P> and
§ complete lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
§|27 Unestictednetassets 7,353| 2 18,837
@ |28 Temporarily restricted netassets 28
2129 Permanently restricted netassets S o 29
a Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here P and
& complete lines 30 through 34,
§ 30 Capital stock or trust principal. or current fun@s 30
& |31 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund o 31
‘26 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 32
33 Totalnet assets or fund balances 7,353] 33 18,837
34 _Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances ... ... 9,759| 2a 166,995

DAA

Form 990 (2016)
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Form 990 (2016) NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE COURT 02-0458455 Page 12
Part XI  Reconciliation of Net Assets
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X} ... . e
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIlI, column (A), fine12) 1 227,198
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line2s)y 2 215,714
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 fromlinet 3 11,484
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, column (A 4 7,353
§ Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 5
6 Dona‘ed SericeS and use Of faciﬁties .............................................................................. 5
7 Investmentexpenses L
8 Priorperiodadjustments ... 8
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule©) 9
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line
33, column(B)) . i e 10 18,837
Part X}  Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response of noteto any lineinthis Part XH . . . .. D
Yes | No
1 Accounting method used {o prepare the Form 990: D Cash Accrual D Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked “Other,” explain in
Schedule O. ;
2a Were the organization's financial statements compited or reviewed by an independent accountant? 2a { X
If “Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or
reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
Separate basis D Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? 2b X
If"Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
D Separate basis D Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis
¢ lf"Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight
of the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 2c | X
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in
Schedule O.
3a As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in
the Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-1337 3a X
b If “Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the
required audit or audits, explain why in Scheduie O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits. 3b

DAA

Form 990 (2016)



NHJUV 11/14/2017 12.00 PM

SCHEDULE A Public Charity Status and Public Support OMB No. 15450047
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) Completes if the org. ionis a tion §01{c){3) organization or a ion 4947(a}1) pt charitable trust. 2 01 6 .
Depariment of the Treasury » Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to-Public
internal Revanue Service . . .
P Information about Schedule A (Form 930 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspaction
Name of the organization NEW HAMPS H I RE JUVEN I LE COURT Employer Identification number
DIVERSION NETWORK, INC 02-0458455

Part ! Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)

1 A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)i).

2 A school described in section 170(b)(1)(AXii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).)

3 A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)iii).

4 A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b){1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital's name,

city, and state:

5 An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part 11.)

A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described in section 170(b)(1)(A){vi). (Complete Part 11.)

A community trust described in section 170(b){1){A)}(vi). (Complete Part Il.)

An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b){(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college
or university or a non-land grant coliege of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
TSIy
An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions—subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its
support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part ifl.)

~ o

I

10

1 An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).
12 An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes
of one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3).
Check the box in lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.
a D Type |. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularty appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the
supporting organization. You must complete Part 1V, Sections A and B.
b D Type Ii. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part 1V, Sections A and C.
c D Type il functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization{s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.
d D Type lIl non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement {see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.
e D Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type li, Type il!
functionally integrated, or Type Il non-functionally integrated supporting organization.
f  Enter the number of supported organizations :}
g Provide the foilowing information about the su'b;':b'rié'd' 6'r§éhiz'éiidh(é). """"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""
(i) Name of supported {HEIN (i3} Type of organization (iv) Is the organization {v) Amount of monetary {vi} Amount of
organization (described on lines 1~10 listed in your goveming support (see other support (see
above (see instructions)) document? instructions) instructions)
Yes No
(A)
(B)
(C)
(D)
(E)
Total
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2016 NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE CQURT 02-0458455 Page 2
Partil Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b){1){(A)(iv) and 170{b)(1)(A)(vi)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under
Part lll. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Iil.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginningin) P {(a) 2012 {b) 2013 (c) 2014 (d) 2015 (e) 2016 (f) Total
1  Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.") o 227,194 227,194
2  Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf
3  The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge =~
4 Total. Addlines 1through3 = 227,194 227,194
5§ The portion of total contributions by
each person {other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shownoniine 11, column ()
6 _ Public support. Sublract line 5 from line 4. 227,194
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) P (a) 2012 {(b) 2013 (c) 2014 (d) 2015 (e) 2016 {f) Total
7 Amounts from line4 227,194 227,194
8 Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties and income from similar
sources. . ...
9  Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business
is regularly carried on .
10  Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(ExplaininPart VL) ... . .. . ... ... 4
11  Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 227,198
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructionsy [ 12 4
13  First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c}(3)
organization, check this boxand stop here . . . _» m
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14  Public support percentage for 2016 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, colurn(fyy = 14 100.00%
16  Public support percentage from 2015 Schedule A, Part i, line 14 15 100.00%
16a 33 1/3% support test—2016. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization .~~~ >
b 33 1/3% support test—2015. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check
this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organizaton =~~~ > D
17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2016. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is
10% or more, and if the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances"” test, check this box and stop here. Explain in
Part VI how the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization OO OSSP > [
b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2015. if the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 173, and fine
15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here.
Explain in Part VI how the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization qualifies as a publicly
supported Organization > [
18  Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see

instructions

> []

DAA
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Schedule A (Form 990 ar 980-EZ) 2016 NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE COURT 02-0458455 Page 3

Part {1} Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

(Complete only if you checked the box on fine 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part I1.
If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part I1.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in}) P (a) 2012 {b) 2013 (c) 2014 (d) 2015 {e) 2016 (f) Total

1

7a

c
8

Gifts, grants, contributions, and membership
fees received. {Do notinclude any “unusual grants.”)

Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or facilities
furnished in any activity that is refated to the
organization's tax-exempt purpose

Gross receipts from activities that are not an
unrelated trade or business under section 513

Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf

The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmentai unit to the
organization without charge

Total. Add lines 1 through 5

Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 3
received from disqualified persons

Amounts included on fines 2 and 3

received from other than disqualified

persons that exceed the greater of $5,000

or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year

Add lines 7a and 7b

Public support. (Subtract line 7¢ from
line6.)

Section B. Total Sﬁpbort

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)  » {a) 2012 (b) 2013 (c) 2014 {d) 2015 (e) 2016 {f) Total

9
102

1

12

13

14

Amounts from line 6

Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans, rents,
royalties and income from similar sources . .

Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1976

Add lines 10a and 10b

Net income from unrelated business
activities not included in line 10b, whether
or not the business is regularly carried on .. .

Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(ExplaininPantvty
Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11,
and 12) L
First five years. if the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, check this boxand stop here .. ... RIS o D

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

15  Public support percentage for 2016 (line 8, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)) s %
16 __ Public support percentage from 2015 Schedule A, Parit I}, line 16 . e e e |16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17  Investment income percentage for 2016 (line 10c, column (f) divided by line 13, colvrn ¢y 17 %
18  Investment income percentage from 2015 Schedule A, Part Ill, line17 o o L1s %
19a 33 1/3% support tests—20186. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line

17 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization .. .. .. . . .. . | 4 D

b 33 1/3% support tests—2015. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 192, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and

fine 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . .. .. . . . . | 4 D

20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions ... ... .. ... ... .. . ... | 4 [:]

DAA
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 930-EZ) 2016 NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE COURT 02-0458455 Page 4
Part Y  Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked 12a of Part I, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked 12b of Part |, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12c of Part |, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked 12d of Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)
Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes No

1 Are all of the organization’s supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing
documents? If “No, “ describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designaled. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes, " explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported

orgenization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2
3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? /f “Yes," answer
(b) and (c) below. 3a

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? /f “Yes, " describe in Part Vi when and how the

organization made the determination. 3b
¢ Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? If "Yes,* explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c
4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States (“foreign supported organization")? /f
"Yes," and if you checked 12a or 12b in Part |, answer (b) and (c) below. 4a

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? /f "Yes, " describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlied or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b

¢ Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes. 4c

S§a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? /f “Yes,"
answer (b) and (c) below (if applicable). Afso, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed, (ii) the reasons for each such action;
(iif) the authority under the organization’s organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action

was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document). 5a
b Typelor Type il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already

designated in the organization's organizing document? 5b
¢ Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's controi? Sc

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited
by one or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also support or
benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? /f “Yes, “ provide detail in Part Vi. 6

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)). a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with

regard to a substantial contributor? If "Yes,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 7
8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 7?
If “Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ2). 8

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described

in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If "Yes," provide detaif in Part VI. 9a
b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which

the supporting organization had an interest? If "Yes, " provide detail in Part V. 9b
¢ Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit

from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? /f “Yes, " provide detail in Part VI. 9c

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4843(f) (regarding certain Type |l supporting organizations, and all Type il non-functionally integrated

supporting organizations)? /f "Yes, " answer 10b below. 10a
b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.) 10b

Schedule A {(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016
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Schedule A (Form 890 or 990-E2) 2016 NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE COURT 02-0458455 Page 5
Part itV Supporting Organizations (continued)

Yes No

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and {(c)
below, the governing body of a supported organization? 11a
b A family member of a person described in (a) above? 11b
¢ A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (a) or (b) above? /f "Yes* to a, b, or c, provide detail in Part VI. 11¢c

Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

Yes No

1 Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to
regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization's directors or trustees at all times during the
tax year? /f “No, " describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or
controlied the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported organization,
describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove directors or trustees were allocated among the supported
organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 1

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? /f "Yes," explain in Part
VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
supervised, or controlled the supporting organization. 2

Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

Yes No

1 Were a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? /f “No," descnbe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or mariaged
the supported organization(s). 1

Section D. All Type lll Supporting Organizations

Yes No

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, () a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (ii) a copy of the Form 890 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the
organization’s governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 1

2 Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (ii} serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If "No," explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and coritinuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 2

3 By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization's supported organizations have a
significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s
income or assets at alt times during the tax year? /f "Yes,” descnbe in Part Vi the role the organization's
supported organizations played in this regard. 3

Section E. Type lll Functionally-Integrated Supporting Organizations
1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).
a The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
b The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.
c The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a government entity (see instructions).

2 Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below. Yes No
a Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? /f "Yes," then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 2a
b Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization’s involvement, one or more
of the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If "Yes," explain in Part VI the
reasons for the organization’s position that its supported orgenization(s) would have engaged in these
activities but for the organization's involvement. 2b
3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (a) and (b) below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or

trustees of each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part VI. 3a
b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? If “Yes, " describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard. 3b

DAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2016
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016 NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE COURT 02-0458455 _Pages
Part V Type lii Non-Functionally integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations
1 Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part V1).See
instructions. All other Type 1ll non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.
Section A - Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year (B) Current Year
(optional)
1 Net shont-term capital gain 1
2 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 2
3 Other gross income (see instructions) 3
4 Add lines 1 through 3. 4
5 Depreciation and depletion 5
6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or
collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property heid for production of income (see instructions)
7 ___Other expenses (see instructions) 7
8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6 and 7 from line 4). 8
Section B - Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year (B) Current Year
(optionat)
1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):
a__ Average monthly value of securities 1a
b Average monthly cash balances 1b
¢ Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets 1c
d _ Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c¢) 1d
e Discount claimed for blockage or other
factors (explain in detail in Part VI):
2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets 2
3 Subtractline 2 from line 1d.
4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions). 4
§ Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3) 5
6 Multiply line 5 by .035. 6
7__Recoveries of prior-year distributions 7
8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6) 8
Section C - Distributable Amount Current Year
1 Adijusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, Column A) 1
2 Enter 85% of line 1. 2
3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, Column A) 3
4 Enter greater of line 2 or line 3. 4
5 Income tax imposed in prior year 5
6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions). 6

7 D Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type il supporting organization (see
instructions).

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016
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Schedu_lef\ (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016 NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE COURT 02-0458455 Page 7
Part vV Type lit Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)
Section D - Distributions Current Year

1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes
2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excess of income from activity
Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations
Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets
Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required)
Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions.
Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.
Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
(provide details in Part VI). See instructions.
9  Distributable amount for 2016 from Section C, line 6
10 Line 8 amount divided by Line 8 amount

@0~ [ e W

(i) (ii) (iii)
Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess Distributions Underdistributions Distributabie
Pre-2016 Amount for 2016

1 Distributable amount for 2016 from Section C, line 6

Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2016
2 (reasonable cause required-explain in Part V1). See
instructions.

3 Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2016:

From2013 ... .. .............. ... .
From2014 . .
From2015 . ... . o

Total of lines 3a through e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2016 distributable amount

i Carryover from 2011 not applied (see instructions)
j Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from 3f.

4  Distributions for 2016 from

Section D, line 7: $
a Applied to underdistributions of prior years
b Applied to 2016 distributable amount
¢ Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4.

§ Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2016, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For resuit
greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2016. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part Vi. See instructions.

7  Excess distributions carryover to 2017. Add lines 3]
and 4c.

8 Breakdown of line 7:

T m|™ (o |a |0 (O

Excess from2013 .. ... ............. ..

Excessfrom2014 .. . ..
Excess from 2015
Excess from 2016

o a0 (oo

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2016 NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE COURT 02-0458455 Page 8
Part Vi Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part Ii, line 10; Part Il, line 17a or 17b; Part
ill, line 12; Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3¢, 4b, 4c, 53, 6, 9a, 9b, 9c¢, 11a, 11b, and 11¢; Part IV, Section
B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b,
3aand 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E,
lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)

DAA Schedule A (Form 930 or 990-E2) 2016
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SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements OMB No. 1545-0047
(Form 990) P Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, 201 6
Part IV, line 6,7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11, 12a, or 12b.

Department of the Treasury » Attach to Form 980. Open to Puablic
Internal Revenue Service » information about Schedule D (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form930. Inspection
Name aof the organization Employer identification number

NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE COURT

DIVERSION NETWORK, INC 02-0458455

Part | Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.
(a) Donor advised funds {b) Funds and other accounts

1 Total numberatendofyear . . . . ...

2 Aggregate value of contributions to (during year)

3 Aggregate value of grants from (during year)

4 Aggregatevalue atendofyear .

5 Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised

funds are the organization’s propery, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control? D Yes D No
6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used
only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose
__conferring impermissible private benefit? .. ... ... ... e . DYes DNo
Part Il Conservation Easements.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.
1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements heid by the organization (check all that apply).
Preservation of iand for public use (e.g., recreation or education) Preservation of a historically important land area
Protection of natural habitat Preservation of a certified historic structure
Preservation of open space
2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation

easement on the last day of the tax year. Heid at the End of the Tax Year
a Total number of conservation easements L 2a
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements L 2b
¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in @ 2c
d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 8/17/06, and not on a
historic structure listed in the National Register 2d
3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the orgamzatlon during the
tax year »

4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located »
5§ Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it hoids? D Yes D No
6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

» .....
7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

L2
8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i

and section 170(MY@IBYIT ... . ... [ ves [] No

9 InPart Xili, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and
balance sheet, and inciude, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the
organization’s accounting for conservation easements.

Partlll  Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 868), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of
public service, provide, in Part XIii, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b [f the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of
public service, provide the following amounts relating to these items:

(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIll, fine 1 ... ... > S

(if) Asselsincludedin Form 990, PartX L
2 If the organization received or held works of an, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the

following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items:
a Revenueincluded on Form 990, Pat Vill, line 1 B G T
b _Assets included in Form 990, Part X . . ... .. ... > 3

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 Schedule D (Form 990) 2016
DAA
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2016 NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE COURT 02-0458455 Page 2
Part lli Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

3 Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its
collection iterns (check all that apply):

a Public exhibition d Loan or exchange programs
b Scholarly research e Other
c Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in Part
Xit,
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historica! treasures, or other similar
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection? .. .. ... .. .. ... .. ... .. ... .. .. D Yes D No
Part ¥  Escrow and Custodial Arrangements.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Par IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form
990, Part X, line 21.
1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not
included on Form 990, Part X? [] ves [] No

b If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part Xlil and complete the following table:

Amount
c Beginningbalance 1c
d Additionsduringthe year 1d
e Distributions duringthe year le
f Endingbalance . . ... SR f
2a Did the organization inciude an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability? D Yes | No
b If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part Xill. Check here if the explanation has been providedon Part Xl ... .. . . .. . . ... ... . ..
Part V Endowment Funds.
Complete if the organization answered *Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
(a) Current year {b) Prior year {c) Two years back {d) Three years back (e) Four years back
1a Beginning of year balance ===~
b Contributions o
¢ Net investment earnings, gains, and
losses E T I T T IR R
Grants or scholarships
e Other expenditures for facilities and
programs
f Administrative expenses
g End ofyearbalance @~
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment®» %
b Permanentendowment®» %
¢ Temporarily restricted endowment®» %
The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
organization by: Yos | No
() unrelated organizations ... 3a(i)
(ii) related organizations . 3a(ii)
b If “Yes" on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedwle R? 3b

4 __Describe in Part XIll the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.
Part i Land, Buildings, and Equipment.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 890, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.
Oescriplion of property (a) Cost o olher basis {b) Cost or olner basis {c) Accumuiated {d) Book vaiue

(investment} {other) depreciation

13 Land ....................................
b Buidings
¢ Leasehold improvements
d Equipment
e Other . .
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 890, Part X, column (B), line 10c.)

Schedute D (Form 990) 2016

DAA
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2016 NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE COURT 02-0458455 Page 3
Part Vil  Investments—Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 890, Part X, line 12.

{a) Dascription of security or category (b) Book value {c) Method of vaiuation:

{including name of security} Cost or end-of-year markel value

(1) Financial dervatives

(2) Closely-held equity interests

(3) Other .
LA

@)

Part Vil Investments—Program Related.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part iV, line 11¢c. See Form 980, Part X, line 13.
{a) Description of investment {b) Book vaiue {c) Method of valuation:
Cost or end-of-year markel vaiue

(1)
(2}
(3)
4)
(5)
(6)
7
(8)
(9
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B} line 13.) I
PartiX  Other Assets.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 930, Part X, line 15.

{a) Description ({b) Book value

()
2)
(3)
{4)
(5)
(6)
(]
{8)
9
Total. (Column (b} must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 15.) . . . . e »
Part X  Other Liabilities.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 890, Part X,
line 25.

1. (a) Description of liability (b} Book vaive

(1) Federal income taxes

{2)

3

(4)

(5

(6)
AN

®

)]
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 25.) P
2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part Xill, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the
organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740). Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part Xili . . ........ m_
DAA Schedule D (Form 990) 2016
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2016 NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE COURT 02-0458455 Page 4
Part Xi Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part iV, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financiail statements 1
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:

a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 2a

b Donated services and use of faciltes 2b

¢ Recoveriesof prioryeargrants R2e

d Other (Describe in Part XNL.) R

e Addlines2athrough2d | 2
3 Subtractline 2e from line 1 )
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIil, line7b 4a

b Other (Describe in Part Xty o . L4b

¢ Add lines 4a and 4b 4c

5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990 Part |, I/ne 12, ) 5
Part Xt  Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 1
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

a Donated services and use of facilites L 2a

b Prior yearadjustments 2b

¢ Otherlosses . 2c

d Other (Deseribe in Part XUl ... 2d

e Addiines 2athrough2d 2¢
3 Subtracthine 2e fromiine 1 3
4 Amounts inciuded on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, line7b 4a

b Other (Describe in Part Xty R . |

C Addlinesdaand 4b 4c
5 Total expenses. Add !mess and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part |, line 18.) . .. 5

Part Xill Supplemental Information.

Provide the descriptions required for Part I, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part Ill, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line
2; Part XI, lines 2d and 4b; and Part Xll, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.
PART X - FIN 48 FOOTNOTE

- WOULD RESULT IN TAXABLE INCOME. IT IS THE ORGANIZATION'S POLICY TO EXPENSE

Schedule D (Form 990) 2016

DAA
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Schedule D (Fom 990) 2016 NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE COURT 02-0458455 Page 5
Part Xill  Supplemental Information (continued)

OBLIGATIONS.

Schedule D (Form 990) 2016

DAA
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SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ OMB No 15450047
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 2 01 6
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
Department of the Treasury P Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Qpen to-Public
Internai Revenue Service » Information about Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. | Inspection
Name of the organization NEW HAMPSHIRE JUVENILE COURT Employer identification number
DIVERSION NETWORK, INC 02-0458455

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 11B - ORGANIZATION'S PROCESS TO REVIEW FORM 990

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 12C - ENFORCEMENT OF CONFLICTS POLICY .. . . . .. . . .
FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 19 - GOVERNING DOCUMENTS DISCLOSURE EXPLANATION

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2016)
DAA
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02-0458455 Federal Statements

FYE: 12/31/2016

Taxable Interest on Investments

Description

Unrelated Exclusion Postal Acquired after US
Amount  Business Code Code Code  6/30/75 Obs ($ or %)

INTEREST

TOTAL $
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s  NH JUVENILE COURT DIVERSION NETWORK

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
2017-2018

Chairperson

Nicole Rodler

Rochester Police Department’s Juvenile Diversion
(603) 330-7149

nicole.rodler@rochesternh.net

Vice Chairperson
Elizabeth Brown

Keene Youth Services
603-357-9811
ebrown@ci.keene.nh.us

Treasurer

Jessica Klingerman

Merrimack County Juvenile Court Diversion
(603) 225-5445
jklingerman@mchumanservices.net

Secretary

Karen Kersting

UpReach Therapeutic Riding Center
(603) 497-2343
karen@upreachtrc.org

Member-At-Large

Diane Casale

Greater Derry Juvenile Diversion
(603) 432-8882
dcasale@urteachers.org



ELIZABETH G. HOUDE

SUMMARY

Proven professional providing proactive leadership for nonprofits and community coalitions. Skills include leading
teams, communicating effectively, analyzing data, solving problems, building infrastructure and implementing ideas.
In addition, | am a compelling speaker, presenter, writer and am skilled at developing and managing budgets.

STRATEGIC LEADERSHIP

Consultant/Coordinator. NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network, Concord, NH, 2013 — present. Initially subcontracted
through Community Health Institute to improve the quality, visibility and sustainability of 16 accredited juvenile court
diversion programs in NH, transitioned to Coordinator in 2015 to leverage new funding sources and develop systems.

Executive Director. The Youth Council, Nashua, NH, 1996 — present. Spearheaded infrastructure-building effort of 23-
year-old nonprofit to offer innovative, award-winning programs with outcome measures and evidence-based
practices. Developed numerous contractual relationships with area schools, police and other nonprofits. Recognized
with several awards including:

Alcohol and Other Drug Services Providers Association Treatment Provider of the Year (2014)

New Futures, Dr. Tom Fox Excellence Award (2013)

Nashua Telegraph, named one of Greater Nashua’s 25 Extraordinary Women (2013).

Rotary Club of Nashua West, Award of Excellence, Creative Idea Award (2006).

WMUR and Citizens Bank, Community Champion (2002).

New Hampshire Children’s Trust Fund, Outstanding management in program evaluation (2000).

NH Governor Jeanne Shaheen, Commendation for excellence in leadership (1999).

Rivier University, Distinguished contributions to students and the community (1999).

Drug-Free Communities Consultant. Contracted with Merrimack Safeguard (2010 — present) and Nashua Prevention
Coalition (2014 — present) to assist with assessment, capacity building and planning for community coalitions awarded
federal Drug-Free Communities grants. Collected and analyzed data, facilitated development of logic model and action
plans, built infrastructure including volunteer leadership, by law creation and branding. Wrote successful application
to continue Merrimack’s coalition work for an additional five years.

Executive Director. NH Teen Institute, 2007 - 2010. Facilitated sustainability of 24-year-old nonprofit. Revitalized
mission, introduced evidence-based practice, spearheaded shift to the next developmental stage. Facilitated board
transition, policies and practices toward heightened accountability. Transitioned to new leadership in January 2011.

STATEWIDE SYSTEMS IMPROVEMENT

Governor’s Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs. Public Member. 2001 — 2013. Appointed to an advisory
capacity regarding the effective and coordinated substance abuse service delivery. Executive Committee member.
Prevention Task Force, 2010 — present.

Reclaiming Futures. Advisory Board. 2002 — 2007. Appointed to NH District Court’s initiative to connect courts,
communities and substance-involved youth. Reviewed best practices toward developing coordinated system of care.

New Futures. 2001 — 2005. Member, Board of Directors, 2001 - 2003. Appointed to board devoted to policy and
programming reducing underage drinking and increasing access to treatment. Served on Executive Committee. Invited
to join National Advisory Board of Adolescent Treatment Initiative in 2004.

Endowment for Health. 1999 — 2002. Appointed by Attorney General as founding board member of $85million
health care conversion foundation. Served on steering committee, named co-chair of first Program Development
Committee, and as board liaison to grant review team recommending $2.5million of initial grant awards.



Betsy Houde, page 2

COMMUNICATION SKILLS

Web Design. Designed and manage multiple web sites including NH Court Diversion Network, Merrimack Safeguard, Nashua
Prevention Coalition, Houde Studios (all WordPress) and The Youth Council (Accrisoft Freedom).

Leadership Fellow, Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, 2002 - 2006. Selected as one of 10 emerging leaders toward
building personal and professional leadership skills. Authored Leaders Unmasked: A Celebration of Guts and Grace.

Director of Program Management /Community Relations, 1993-1996. Nashua Children’s Home, Nashua, New
Hampshire. Promoted to created positions, presented at workshops from Boys Town to Washington, DC.

Clinical Experience, 1983-1993. Nashua Children’s Home. Counseled children, teens and families. Served as Family
Program Supervisor, Therapist and Residential Counselor.

COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP

President, 2013-14. Rotary Club of Nashua West. Member, 1997 - present. Board of Directors 2008 — 2015.
Membership chair 2007- 2012. Volunteer Coordinator 2004 — present; Special Projects chair 2005 — 2007;

Leadership Greater Nashua, a program of the Nashua Chamber of Commerce, 1999.
Community Needs Assessment Committee, 1999 — 2016. United Way of Greater Nashua.

Nashua Mayor’s Task Force on Youth. 1997 - 2002. Network. Nashua, NH. 1993 - 1997.

Child Welfare League of America. Washington, DC.

Rivier College Counseling Advisory Board. 1993 - 2000. - ;
1993 - 1996. Served on Family-Focused Working Group

Child Welfare Advisory Board. 1997-2000. comprised of leaders in family- centered care from
around the country. Contributed two articles to CWLA’s

State Leadership Team. ConCOI'd, NH. 1995 -1996. Mapplng a New Direction Resource Gu/de

SMALL BUSINESS OWNER

Lampwork Artist, Empty Nest Glassworks, 2008 — 2016. Launched small business hand-melting glass gifts using
oxygen/propane torch and glass rods. Developed web site, all marketing materials and launched Facebook fan page
with over 175 members. Member of The Craftworkers’ Guild, Bedford, NH.

EDUCATION
WordPress, web design, 2013.

Community Coalition Planning, engaging and motivating teams, CADCA National Coalition Academy, 2011.
Project Connect, a Robert Wood Johnson initiative to train emerging leaders to work with elected officials, 2003.
Radiant Communication Strategies, a consultative training to develop communications skills, 2002.

Master of Arts in Counseling, with distinction. Rivier University, Nashua, New Hampshire, 1990.

Bachelor of Arts, cum laude. Connecticut College, New London, Connecticut, 1983. Majors: Sociology-Based Human
Relations and Child Development. Dean’s List, American Association of University Women Award.



CONTRACTOR NAME: NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from
this Contract this Contract

Betsy Houde, MA Coordinator Subcontracted @ $55/hr 380 hours $21,040




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: SS-2018-DCYF-07-SAG-03

State Advisory Group (SAG) Award for Community Prevention Services

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
NH Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857
1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
New Hampshire Legal Assistance 117 North State Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number
603-206-2226 05-95-42-421410-79060000- March 31, 2019 $22,579
072-500575

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

E. Maria Reinemann, Esq. 603-271-9330

Director of Contracts and Procurement

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Cagtractor Signatory
/.' M A Ll»fnn@/\fl (R 7y
L i T Execvotive Dire ¢~ar

. =
1.13 Acknowledgement: State of N H- ,Countyof  [N€rvi mack

On Q r‘(' [ P ) 2 9 (€ before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

[Seal] ()émyl&k ﬂ K,U)/Qg SRENDA G. KIRK, Notary Public
: ~State ot New Hampshire

( 1.13.2 Name ard Title of Notary or My Gormmission Expires Septemwm 17,2019

Beeada & KLIV

77*2 Agency Si 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
%@Q Date: Y73 @Znﬁéé oy eppan), 555((&% Mﬂ/

1.T8 Approval by the N. H! Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

Mmoo A On A{'{Wv«; ‘f/?/lﬁ

1.18 Approval by the Governor and pkedutive C!)unU (if appl‘caBle) ) l 7/

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date”).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Contractor Initials /_m /)
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concering the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers' Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers” Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no
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such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Advisory Group (SAG) Award for Prevention Services for the Community

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

The Contractor shall provide juvenile court diversion, delinquency prevention and
intervention services, through The Contractor's Youth Law Project (YLP) that focus
on behavioral health and/or disproportionate minority contact for youth up to
eighteen (18) years of age, and which assist in the reduction of youth involvement
with the juvenile justice system.

The Contractor shall maintain offices in Manchester, Portsmouth, Concord,
Claremont, and Berlin for the purposes of meeting with, and providing legal
services for, clients who are at risk of, or involved with, the juvenile justice system.

For the purposes of this Contract, the Contractor shall be identified as sub-
recipient in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200.330 and 2 CFR 200.331.
The Contractor and sub-recipient will be referred to as Vendor in this Exhibit.

2. Scope of Services

2.1 The Contractor shall employ an attorney with the ability to provide civil legal
advocacy to court-involved youth, including, but not limited to:
211 Representing youth at major school disciplinary hearings.
2.1.2 Providing policy advocacy to increase statewide use of evidence-based
practices in education and juvenile justice.
213 Presenting information and instruction at the local and regional levels on
the interplay between special education and juvenile justice.
2.2 The Contractor shall employ a paralegal to provide services for court-involved
youth, including, but not limited to:
2.2.1 Interviewing eligible juveniles to identify their legal problems.
222 Investigating case issues.
2.2.3 Maintaining regular communication with the juvenile and/or family, as
needed.
224 Providing negotiation services.
225 Advocating on behalf of juveniles at special education, school discipline,
and treatment team meetings.
2286 Providing administrative and clerical support, including, but not limited t?
New Hampshire Legal Assistance Exhibit A Contractor Initials: L M
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Advisory Group (SAG) Award for Prevention Services for the Community

Exhibit A

2.2.6.1 Reviewing and organizing documents.
2.2.6.2 Compiling charts and graphs.

2.2.6.3 Researching case issues.

2.2.6.4 Drafting legal documents.

2.3 The Contractor shall review referrals received and provide services needed, giving
priority to youth in need of placement while awaiting trial for offenses that would
not warrant detention, including, but not limited to:

2.3.1 Conducting an intake interview within seven (7) days of receiving a
referral.

23.2 Performing case investigations.
233 Interviewing the referral source.

234 Attending special education, school discipline and team meetings, as
needed.

2.3.5 Maintaining contact with the juvenile.

2.4 The Contractor shall represent juveniles at administrative and major school
disciplinary hearings, including, but not limited to:

2.4.1 Meeting face-to-face with the juvenile in the Contractor’s office, or in the
juvenile’s home, as necessary.

242 Identifying, preparing and presenting evidence at hearings.
24.3 Drafting legal documents, as needed.

244 Negotiating with school districts and governmental agencies on behalf of
the juvenile.

245 Pursuing civil remedies on behalf of the juvenile, which may include, but
are not limited to,

2.45.1 Mental health services.

2.4.5.2 Special education services.

2.4.5.3 Public entittements. and other
2.4.5.4 Community-based support services.

246 Appearing at the disposition stage of a delinquency or for Children in
Needs of Services (CHINS) case in state or federal court to pursue
appropriate civil remedies.

2.5 The Contractor shall provide information regarding Contractor services to the
Division for Children, Youth and Families {DCYF), the Center for Excellence, and
the NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network, inciuding, but not limited to:

2.51 A minimum of one hundred brochures that describe services provided by
the Contractor.

252 Other brochures published by State and Federal agencies that describe
relevant government programs and services.

253

Lf

New Hampshire Legal Assistance Exhibit A Contractor [nitials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Advisory Group (SAG) Award for Prevention Services for the Community

Exhibit A

2.5.4 and other brochures published by State and Federal government
agencies,

2.6 The Contractor shall conduct ongoing research of civil iegal issues related to
special education, mental health and public entitiements for juveniles.

2.7 The Contractor shall provide support services to the Office of the Public Defender
by gathering and sharing case information to ensure a solid representation of the
juvenile in court cases.

2.8 The Contractor shall meet with the DCYF to provide services, including, but not
limited to:

2.8.1 Advocacy services to youth and families prior to deep involvement with
the juvenile justice system.

2.8.2 Information and advocacy services related to current juvenile civil legal
issues, including, but not limited to:

2.8.2.1 Special education.
2.8.2.2 Mental health.
2.8.2.3 Public entitlements.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1 The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports to the Division for Children, Youth
and Families that include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1 A narrative summary of activities conducted in Section 2 above. The
summary shall include, but not be limited to:

3.1.1.1 Descriptions of advocacy and legal activities conducted,
including but not limited to dates, times, duration and the
number of youth served by each type of service provided.

3.1.1.2 Barriers and challenges experienced by the Contractor during
the quarter.

3.1.1.3 Plans to address barriers and challenges for the next quarter.
3.1.2 Demographic information that includes, but is not limited to:
3.1.2.1  Number of youths served by race/ethnicity and gender.

3.1.2.2 Number of youths who successfully access community-based
services.

3.1.2.3 Number of youths who retain New Hampshire Legal Assistance
for legal services but withdraw prior to case resolution.

3.1.2.4 Number of youths who obtain a finding of true on an unrelated
petition after being beginning a program.

3.1.2.5 Referral source.
3.1.2.6  Number of youths who participated in each program component.

3.1.3 Back up documentation detailing actual expenditures for approved
contract related activities.

3.2  The Contractor shall provide reports to DCYF on or before:
L r
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Advisory Group (SAG) Award for Prevention Services for the Community

Exhibit A

3.2.1 April 30" for all activities performed from January 1st through March 31st
of the current year.

3.2.2 July 31st for all activities performed from April 1st through June 30th of
the current year.

3.2.3 October 31st for all activities performed from July 1st through September
31st of the current year.

3.24 January 31st for all activities performed from October 1st through
December 31st of the previous year

4, Staffing

4.1 The Contractor shall provide staffing that includes, but is not limited to:

4.1.1 An attorney, who is admitted to the NH Bar Association, to serve as YLP
Director, for not less than 1 full-time equivalent (1.0 FTE) of at least 40
hours each week.

41.2 A paralegal, for not less than .45 FTE, that has qualifications including,
but not limited to:

4.1.2.1 Abachelor's degree,

41.2.2 Two (2) years of experience as a paralegal, including, but not
limited to:

4.1.2.2.1 Providing juvenile justice services to low-
income children.

4.1.2.2.2 Special education advocacy.

5. Performance Measures
51 The Contractor shall:

51.1 Track the percentage of youths who receive services, but withdraw prior
to case resolution.

51.2 Track the percentage of youths that have received services from YLP for
previous legal matters.

51.3 Track the percentage of youths who participate in an in-take interview
and:

5.1.3.1.1 Receive services from YLP.

5.1.3.1.2 Terminate from YLP prior to completion.
5.1.3.1.3 Recidivate while actively involved in YLP.
5.1.3.1.4 Successfully complete YLP

6. Deliverables

6.1 The Contractor shall attend no less than twelve (12) meetings with DCYF, as
described in Section 2.8.

6.2 The Contractor shall ensure that no less than twenty-five (25) individuals are
represented at advocacy/educational meetings identified in Section 2.3.4 by the
Contractor.

New Hampshire Legal Assistance Exhibit A Contractor Initials: L Mm [)
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Advisory Group (SAG) Award for Prevention Services for the Community

Exhibit A

6.3 The contractor shall ensure that no less than seven (7) juveniles who retain New
Hampshire Legal Assistance for legal services withdraw prior to case resolution.

6.4 The Contractor shall provide promotional materials, as described in Section 2.5, no
later than thirty (30) days from the Contract effective date.

6.5 The Contractor shall provide services to no less than thirty-five (35) at-risk
juveniles.

New Hampshire Legal Assistance Exhibit A Contractor Initials: L M ()
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Advisory Group (SAG) Award for Community Prevention Services

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

This contract is funded with funds from the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #16.540,
U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention in providing services
pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services. The contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A,
Scope of Services in compliance with funding requirements.

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation on Form P37,
General Provisions Block 1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A,
Scope of Services.

2. Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis only for actual expenditures.
Expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line item budgets shown in Exhibits B-1
and Exhibit B-2.

3. Payment for services shall be made as follows:

3.1 The Contractor will submit quarterly reports as specified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services,
Sections 3, with an invoice for reimbursement of actual expenses incurred during the
quarter, for a total of four (4) invoices per year. The State shall make payment to the
Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for Contractor services
provided pursuant to this Agreement.

3.2 Invoices and reports identified in Section 3.1 must be submitted to:

Pamela Sullivan

Juvenile Justice Specialist

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division for Children, Youth and Families

1056 North River Road

Manchester, NH 03104

4. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified in
Exhibit A, Section 3.
5. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than sixty (60) days after the Contract ends.

Failure to submit the invoice, and accompanying documentation could result in nonpayment.

6. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or
Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not
been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at full
capacity at no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract period.

8. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to
transfer the funds within the budget and within the price limitation, can be made by written
agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

New Hampshire Legal Assistance Exhibit B Contractor Initials: L f\’( F
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department reguiations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and refiecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, reguiations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOQP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOQOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resuiting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shali apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor’s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL.: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials L m /)
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is

replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Pian for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

N - - - Lmf
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: AJ¢ .., qupsh I/‘C; uﬁ@/

XN 7
/] 1ol L 2 S

Date Name:' Ly vine ™ Far ko
Title: Eye Cof7 e le\-(“cr/o(
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title Vi

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

New bampshire Leca| ASista ey

Date Name: qulr‘.&, " Fay ke_~
Title: EXC’LL)%‘) ve :D/Y*ffdll}\/
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered

transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and

“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and

Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the

attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
Exhibit F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials L‘M’p
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without maodification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

S Lo H?L/PWS/“'*(, L€54/ 433/8’/21/; e

4/10/rg Zc/nkmp

Date Name: LL{n N M Fa,r/l(,r
Title: EXfLu'hu-( D"‘C’O‘O/
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Palicies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G ()
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: , )

Noero Hampshin~ Lesa [ Assislau e
Date Name: L;/{ Ane M (/a/r/t(_//‘
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

N HdVVl/Dﬁ)It‘“C L—Cs'a// /4%5[37"Z¢1q e

Date Name: Ltf y1 me M ol
Title: v o 1 e Dive et
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Exhibit |

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

@)) Definitions.
a. ‘Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f.  “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. ‘HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(qg).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. P

im
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(2)

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

“Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health [nformation” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
l. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
1. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
M. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

C. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI ()
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j- Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

l. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHL.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an apportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Requlatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

C. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. P
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services Mery Hamp_éh I re€ QS@ / 453;5’}‘& n Ce__

/{ ? Name of the Contract
S leeemie

._S'rgfature of Authorlieﬂ Representative Signature of Authorized Representative
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant madifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the foliowing information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1. Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)

0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if;
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SCONOOR®N

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

New Hawpshive, Leoal fssistrn co
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 12 q 1040

2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

) R YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount;
Name: Amount;
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. “Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, “ Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. “Computer Security Incident” shali have the same meaning “Computer Security
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. “Confidential Information” or “Confidential Data” means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. “End User” means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. “Incident” means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. “Open Wireless Network” means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire’'s Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. “Personal Information” (or “PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. “Protected Health Information” (or “PHI”) has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of “Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

DHHS information :
Security Requirements / / %/
Page 2 of 9 Date L-t /Lf‘ [

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application’s encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via cerfified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section V. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State’s
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

mP
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

[ (1%
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State’s Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This includes a
confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section [V A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency’s documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor’'s compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor’'s procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;
2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;
3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4. ldentify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VL. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL
ASSISTANCE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April 20, 1971. 1
further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concemned.

Business ID: 63969
Certificate Number: 0004082521

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 16th day of April A.D. 2018.

Gor Lo

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

l, Samantha Elliott , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. l am a duly elected Officer of _ New Hampshire Legal Assistance
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on _11/8/2017
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the Executive Director
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

Jdk _ )
the ,é day of AF“ ( ,ZOQ.
(Date Contract Signed)

4. Lynne M. Parker is the duly elected Executive Director
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency.

“H YU

(Signature of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of ML iri mmack

NTA
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ( ¢ day of A?r‘ ’ , 204

SAMMLU Elljo+¥

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)
Ui 91y (frnsg Dozt

(NotdryPubttt/Justice of the Peace)

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires: [Z/ 3/20/4

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)}

4/11/2018

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

CONLACT cara Scala

FIAI/Cross Insurance PHONE ey (603)669-3218 mélwoa)sds-ual
1100 Elm Street L s cscala@crossagency . com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Manchester NH 03101 INSURER A :Hanover Ins Co. 22292
INSURED INSURERB :Citizens Ins Co of America 31534
NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE INSURER G :
INC. INSURER D :
117 N. STATE STREET INSURER E -
CONCORD NH 03301 INSURER F «
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:7/17-7/18 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL[SUER POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE NSD | WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DDIYYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
A J CLAIMS-MADE E OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $ 300,000
OHV9596253 7/1/2017 7/1/2018 | MED EXP (Any one person) $ 10,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
X |pouey [ %% [ ioc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 2,000,000
OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (Ea accident) $ 1,000,000
a ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) ! $
—
L ALL OUWINED SCHEDULED OHV9596253 7/1/2017 | 7/1/2018 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
X NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE 5
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS {Per accident)
$
X | UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 2,000, 000ﬂ
a EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
DED { ‘ RETENTION $ OHV9596253 7/1/2017 7/1/2018 $
WORKERS COMPENSATION WBV9596241 7/2/2017 | 7/2/2018 | X | RER QFH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN 6 2/ /2/2018 STATUTE ‘ ’ ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE State: NH E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? E N/A .
B {Mandatory in NH) No Officers Excluded E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 1, 000 . 000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $ 1,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be hed if more space is required)

Confirmation of Coverage

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health and Human Service
129 Pleasant Street

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Concord, NH 03301

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Cara Scala/DL3

Corne of . decoto—

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INS025 on1any

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE
LEGAL ADVICE & REFERRAL CENTER

OUR VISION, MISSION, AND VALUES

OUR VISION is that the low-income people of New Hampshire will have their voices heard in
the courtrooms and other legal and policy-making arenas of our state when their shelter, health

care, subsistence income, education, custody of their children, safety from abuse, or other basic
needs are at stake.

OUR MISSION is to fulfill America’s promise of equal justice by providing civil legal services
to New Hampshire’s poor, including education and empowerment, advice, representation, and
advocacy for systemic change.

OUR VALUES

A justice system accessible to all is a core element of our democracy’s social contract
that binds everyone in our state together in a web of rights and responsibilities.

If the justice system is to operate effectively and fairly, vigorous and skillful legal
advocacy should be available to those who cannot purchase it in legal disputes in which
their basic needs are at stake.

The legal aid network, the private bar, and the judiciary have a particular obligation to
promote these ideals and to lead efforts to persuade our political institutions to provide
the necessary resources to put these principles into practice.

Legal advocacy to assist individuals with day-to-day legal issues and systemic advocacy
to address the underlying causes of poverty are complementary strategies in a
comprehensive and effective legal aid system.

Client needs should drive the New Hampshire legal aid system and legal services should
be provided in a manner that respects the dignity and value of low-income people.

OUR OPERATING PRINCIPLES

Statewide Accessibility and Responsiveness to Community Legal Needs. The legal aid
system should be easy to access and available statewide, and it should have the capacity
to respond rapidly to changing client needs. Low-income people should be involved in
helping legal service providers identify the highest priority legal needs to be addressed by
our programs.

Collaboration. The legal aid system in New Hampshire is a partnership whose successful
functioning requires maximum collaboration among legal services programs, the private
bar, the judiciary and other entities within the broader legal community.



Stewardship. The legal aid system is continuously accountable to our clients, funders,
and partners. We have a duty of stewardship to preserve and enhance our programs and
services over the long-term for the benefit of future clients.

Organizational Excellence. The legal aid programs in New Hampshire are committed to
achieving excellence both in the quality of our service to clients and in the efficient use of
the resources available to us. We will take advantage of economies of scale whenever
possible and promote effective use of existing and emerging technologies by developing
necessary and appropriate organizational structures.

Professional Excellence. To assure that NHLA and LARC provide low-income people
with high-quality legal services, our legal aid programs should recruit and retain staff of
the highest quality by offering competitive compensation and providing the training,
supervision, and technological support needed to assure the highest level of staff
performance for our clients.

Fxcerpted from Strategic Plan

Approved on November 14, 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Hampshire Legal Assistance,
Inc., which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the
related statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
P )

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material iisstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures sclected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statcments in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate it the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes cvaluating the appropriateness of accounting policics used and the rcasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall prescntation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc., as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Supplementary Information -

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an-opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedules of functional expenses and the combining statements of financial
position and activities are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
financial statements. Additionally, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March
30, 2018, on our consideration of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering New Hampshire Legal
Assistance, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

WW@M =

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 30, 2018



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
Statements of Financial Position
December 31,2017 and 2016

2017 2016
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and equivalents $ 1,258,104 $ 1,428,475

Cash, restricted 29,610 50,494

Investments 2,378 2,283

Grants and contracts receivable 3,661,256 4,153,203

Contributions receivable 5,000 56,851

Prepaid expenses 32,690 25,429

Security deposits 13,850 13,850
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 5,002,888 5,730,585

NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Contributions receivable 5,000

Land, building and equipment (net) 255,958 248,643
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 255,958 253,643
TOTAL ASSETS $ 5,258,846 $ 5,984,228

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable $ 47,357 $ 68,478

Accrued expenses 151,064 132,540

Deposits held for others 29,610 50,494

Current portion of note payable 11,000 11,000
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 239,031 262,512

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Note payable, less current portion 18,000 30,000
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 18,000 30,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES 257,031 292,512

NET ASSETS:

Unrestricted:

Board designated reserve 450,000 -
Undesignated 605,555 1,032,094

Temporarily restricted 3,946,260 4,659,622
TOTAL NET ASSETS 5,001,815 5,691,716
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 5,258,846 $ 5,984,228

See notes to financial statements
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
Statements of Activities
For the Years Ended December 31,2017 and 2016

CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
SUPPORT AND REVENUE:
New Hampshire Bar Foundation - IOLTA
Government grants and contracts
United Ways
Contributions - Foundations and Other
Contributions - Campaign for Legal Services
Case revenue
Investment income
Net assets released from restrictions
TOTAL UNRESTRICTED SUPPORT AND REVENUE

EXPENSES:
Program services:
Domestic violence project
Housing justice project
Senior law project
Youth law project
Other civil legal services
Total program services
Supporting services:
Fund raising
Management and general
Total supporting services
TOTAL EXPENSES

INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

CHANGES IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
New Hampshire Bar Foundation - [OLTA
Government grants and contracts
United Ways
Contributions - Foundations and Other
Contributions - Campaign for Legal Services
Temporarily restricted net assets released from restrictions
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED
NET ASSETS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - January |
NET ASSETS - December 31

See notes to financial statements
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2017 2016
$ 281,458 § 249,083
674,995 900,763
70,308 96,823
332,525 265,444
283,894 277,040
135,991 260,966
1,278 1,000
2,124,482 1,506,116
3,904,931 3,557,235
577,525 168,677
673,153 676,106
215,234 226,177
155,567 57,598
1,591,643 1,646,241
3,213,122 2,774,799
225,601 169,397
442,747 601,905
668,348 771,302
3,881,470 3,546,101
23,461 11,134
201,042 177,917
785,403 3,275,103
54,750 30,633
363,925 550,176
6,000 14,637
(2,124,482) (1,506,116)
(713,362) 2,542,350
(689,901) 2,553,484
5,691,716 3,138,232
$ 5001,815 § 5691,716




NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets $ (689,901) $ 2,553,484
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash used by operating activities:

Depreciation 19,871 21,130
Unrealized losses in investments 7
Net effect of changes in:
Grants and contracts receivable 491,947 (2,584,207)
Contributions receivable 56,851 (37,114)
Prepaid expenses (7,261) 8,935
Accounts payable (21,121) 27,569
Accrued expenses 18,524 5,513
Deposits held for others (20,884) (58,712)
Net cash used by operating activities (151,974) (63,395)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment (27,186} (35,206)
Purchase of investments (95)
Net cash used in investing activities (27,281 (35,206)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments on note payable (12,000) (12,000)
Net cash used for financing activities (12,000) (12,000)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS (191,255) (110,601)
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS - January 1 1,478,969 1,589,570
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS - December 31 $ 1,287,714 $ 1,478,969

See notes to financial statements
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31,2017 and 2016

NOTE 1--SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Activities

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. is a non-profit organization incorporated in 1971, with the mission
to fulfill America’s promise of equal justice by providing civil legal services to New Hampshire’s poor,
including education and empowerment, advice, representation, and advocacy for systemic change.

The accounting policies of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. (the ‘Entity’), conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to nonprofit entities except as
indicated hereafter. The following is a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reporting pronouncements pertaining
to Not-for-Profit Entities included within the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The Entity is
required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of
net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets,
based upon the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. The Entity has no permanently
restricted net assets.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Recognition of Donor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as an increase in unrestricted net
assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All other donor
restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending
on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and other cash accounts with a maturity of 90 days or
less. For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

2017 2016
As presented on the Statements of Financial Position -
Cash and equivalents $ 1,258,104 $ 1,428,475
Cash, restricted 29,610 50,494

$ 1,287,714 $ 1,478,969




NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Investments

Investments, which consist of unit investment trusts, are stated at fair value at December 31, 2017 and
2016. Unrealized gains and losses on investments are reflected in the statements of activities.

Contributions Receivable

Unconditional pledges are recorded as made. These amounts are recorded at the present value of the
estimated fair value. Conditional pledges are recognized only when the conditions on which they depend
are substantially met and the pledges become unconditional. Contributions receivable are collectible as

follows:

2017 Total 0-1 Years 1-5 Years
Contributions receivable $ 14,449 $ 14,449 $ -

2016 Total 0-1 Years 1-5 Years
Contributions receivable 3 61,851 $ 56,851 $ 5,000

Land, Building and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost for purchased items and at acquisition value for donated items
and is summarized as follows:

2017 2016
Land $ 10,000 $ 10,000
Building 474,993 447,807
Equipment 224,209 224,209

709,202 682,016
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (453,244) (433,373)

$ 255958 $ 248,643

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over estimated three to ten-year lives for
equipment, and seven to forty-year lives for the building and improvements. Expenditures for repairs and
maintenance are expensed when incurred and betterments with a useful life in excess of two years are

capitalized.

Depreciation expense for the years ending December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $19,871 and $21,130,
respectively.

Deposits Held for Others

Deposits held for others consist of funds that are held for the express purpose of third party individuals
and organizations and are therefore not available to support the Entity’s own programs.



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Bad Debts

The Entity uses the reserve method for accounting for bad debts. It is the Entity’s policy to charge off
uncollectible receivables when management determines the receivable will not be collected. No
allowance has been recorded as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, because management of the Entity
believes that all outstanding receivables are fully collectible.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those

estimates.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the accompanying statements of activities. Accordingly, certain indirect costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited, based primarily on percentage allocations
calculated based on hours worked.

Fund Raising Activities

Fund raising expenses represent the allocated costs of the Campaign for Legal Services (See Note 14
below). Distributions of campaign donations to the Entity’s campaign partner agencies have been
included as fundraising expense because the Entity has an agreement to distribute these funds, which do
not represent typical, out-of-pocket operating expenses of the Entity. Distributions of campaign donations
for the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 totaled $73,100 and $69,300, respectively.

Donated Services

The Entity receives donated services from a variety of part-time volunteers in the form of administrative
assistance, as well as paralegal and legal services. The estimated fair value of these donations is recorded
as revenue and expenses in the accompanying Statements of Activities. Donated services recognized as
revenue and expenses in the Statements of Activities for the years ending December 31, 2017 and 2016

was $101,691 and $102,459, respectively.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash and equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses are carried in the
financial statements at amounts which approximate fair value due to the inherently short-term nature of
the transactions. The fair values determined for financial instruments are estimates, which for certain
accounts may differ significantly from the amounts that could be realized upon immediate liquidation.



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

NOTE 2--INVESTMENTS

Fair Value Measurements

The Entity reports under the Fair Value Measurements pronouncements of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820-10), which establishes a framework for measuring fair value.
That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below.

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that the Entity has the ability to access.

Level 2 — Inputs to the valuation include;:

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement,

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need
to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs at the closing price
reported on the active market on which the individual securities are traded.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

Unit Investment Trusts: Valued at the quoted liquidation price for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Entity believes its valuation
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair
value measurement at the reporting date.

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Entity’s assets at fair value as
of December 31, 2017 and 2016:



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Assets at Fair Value as of December 31, 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Unit Investment Trusts $ 2,378 $ 2378
Total assets at fair value 5 - $ 2,378 $ - $ 2378
Assets at Fair Value as of December 31, 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Unit Investment Trusts $§ 2,283 $ 2,283
Total assets at fair value h) - $ 2,283 $ - 5§ 2283

Investment Valuation and Income Recognition

The Entity’s investments as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are stated at fair value. Shares of the separate
investment accounts are valued at liquidation prices, which represent the value per unit the Entity would

receive if the Entity redeemed or sold the units at year-end.

Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-date basis. Interest income
accrual basis. Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date.

Investments consist of unit investment trusts which are carried at market value (adjusted annually).
Assets held in the

Realized and unrealized gains and losses are reflected in the statements of activities.
investment accounts were as follows at December 31, 2017 and 2016:

is recorded on the

Market Market
Value Value
2017 2016
Unit Investment Trusts $ 2,378 $ 2,283

NOTE 3--GRANTS AND CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE

Grants and contracts receivable, by funding category, consist of the following at December 31, 2017 and

2016:
2017 2016
State of New Hampshire and Federal - Departments and Agencies $ 2,699,780 $ 3,453,279
Local Governments 54,417 49,446
New Hampshire Bar Foundation - IOLTA 241,250 213,500
United Way (various branches) 37,334 38,716
Foundations and Other 628,475 398,262
$ 3,661,256 $ 4,153,203
NOTE 4--NOTE PAYABLE
Note payable at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consists of the following;:
2017 2016
Promissory note payable, maturing July 2020;
payable in monthly installments of $1,000 $ 25,000 § 41,000




NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31,2017 and 2016

The Entity’s note payable is a result of a legal settlement agreement reached in November 2012. The
terms of the agreement require the Entity to make monthly payments of $1,000, with no interest, through
July 2020. In addition, as part of the settlement agreement, the holder of the promissory note will make
annual payments of $5,000 over a six-year period commencing April 30, 2013, to the Campaign for Legal
Services.

Scheduled maturities of the note payable for the next three years are as follows:

Year Ended
December 31 Amount
2018 $ 11,000
2019 12,000
2020 6,000

529,000

NOTE 5--LINE OF CREDIT

The Entity has an available line of credit with its primary bank for up to $500,000. No amounts have been
drawn on the line of credit and there was no outstanding balance due as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.

NOTE 6--VACATION LEAVE

Full-time employees earn annual vacation leave as they provide services. Pursuant to Entity policy, full-
time employees may accumulate, subject to certain limitations, unused vacation leave, and upon
termination of employment be compensated for such amounts at current rates of pay. Employees may not
“cash out” their accumulated vacation leave at any time during their employment. Accumulated earned
vacation leave at December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $95,207 and $86,156, respectively, and has been
included as part of the ‘Accrued expenses’ liability in the Statements of Financial Position.

NOTE 7--PENSION PLAN

The Entity operates a 401(k)-retirement plan, and under the plan’s “safe harbor” rules, the Entity
contributes 3% of all employees’ salaries to the plan. Under the terms of the plan, the Entity has the
discretion to make a higher level of contribution to the plan but is not obligated. For the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016 the Entity’s discretionary contribution was 2% of all employees’ salaries.
Contributions to the plan for the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 totaled $114,975 and $106,461,

respectively.
NOTE 8--TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets whose use has been limited by donors as to purpose and/or a future time
period consists of the following as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016

Civil legal services $ 1,087,160 $ 846,050
Fair Housing legal scrvices 835,672 1,269,069
Domestic violence legal services 358,447 583,054
Elderly and Adult legal services 348,895 305,188
Violence against women legal services 45,000

Juveniles and Youth legal services 22,579 44,198
Human Services and Homeless legal services 28,334 24,844
Medical and Legal Collaboration 1,923 10,253
Enviornmental Justice Project 357,815 446,821
Victims of Crime legal services 807,206 1,066,210
Supervised Visitation legal services 47,229 49,298
Campaign for Legal Services 6,000 14,637

$ 3,946,260 $ 4,659,622

NOTE 9--LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Entity leases its current Manchester, New Hampshire office building under an agreement that
commenced October 1, 2014 and ends September 30, 2019. The Entity leases its Concord, New
Hampshire office under an agreement that commenced November 19, 2014 and ends November 18, 2019.
The terms of all of the Entity’s leases contain a provision that allow the Entity to terminate the lease prior
to the end of the lease term in the event of a funding reduction. Rental expense for leases was $173,253
and $167,650 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The following is a schedule, by years, of future minimum payments for operating leases:

Year Ended Annual Lease
December 31 Commitments
2018 $ 145,065
2019 122,272
$ 267,337

NOTE 10--INCOME TAXES

The Entity is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and is also exempt from State of New Hampshire income taxes and, therefore, has made no provision for
Federal or State income taxes. In addition, the Entity has been determined by the Internal Revenue
Service not to be a "Private Foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code.

The Entity has adopted FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 entitled Accounting for
Income Taxes which requires the Entity to report uncertain tax positions for financial reporting purposes.
FASB ASC 740 prescribes rules regarding how the Entity should recognize, measure and disclose in its
financial statements, tax positions that were taken or will be taken on the Entity’s tax returns that are
reflected in measuring current or deferred income tax assets and liabilities. Differences between tax
positions taken in a tax return and amounts recognized in the financial statements will generally result in
an increase in a liability for income tax payable or a reduction in a deferred tax asset or an increase in a
deferred tax liability. The Entity had no uncertain tax positions as of December 31, 2017 and, accordingly



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

does not have any unrecognized tax benefits that need to be recognized or disclosed in the financial
statements.

NOTE 11--CASE REVENUE

The Entity receives a regular stream of case revenue from fees in Social Security and SSI disability cases.
These fee awards must be approved by the Social Security Administration Administrative Law Judge.
From time to time the Entity also receives larger attorney fee awards in individual and class action cases.
These class action fee awards are episodic, and it is not possible to predict in advance their amounts or the
dates they will be received.

NOTE 12--ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, approximately 31% and 34%, respectively, of total
unrestricted support and revenue was derived from an appropriation from the State of New Hampshire.
The discontinuation or reduction of the State appropriation would likely result in a decrease in services
provided by the Entity, until alternative revenues could be obtained.

NOTE 13--SIGNIFICANT CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Entity maintains bank deposits at financial institutions with local branches located in New
Hampshire. The Entity’s cash balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
up to a total of $250,000 for all cash checking and sweep accounts. The Entity has entered into
agreements with the financial institutions to move funds in excess of FDIC limits into insured cash sweep
accounts. Funds held in the insured cash sweep accounts are placed into FDIC insured deposit accounts
with other financial institutions throughout the United States. As of December 31, 2017, and 2016 the

Entity’s bank deposits were fully insured.
NOTE 14--CAMPAIGN FOR LEGAL SERVICES

In June 2005, the Entity assumed administration of the Campaign for Legal Services (the Campaign) from
the New Hampshire Bar Foundation. The Campaign is a joint fundraising effort on behalf of the Entity
and the Legal Advice and Referral Center (LARC), a not-for-profit entity providing civil legal services to
low-income people in the State of New Hampshire. Revenue and expenses of these activities have been
reported as contributions received and made and as fund raising expenses in these financial statements.
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 the Campaign had total unrestricted revenue and
support of $298,536 and $290,827, respectively, and total expenses excluding distributions of $89,677
and $92,827, respectively.

Distributions to the Campaign partners during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 totaled
$208,859 and $198,000, respectively. Distributions were allocated and made as follows for the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016: the Entity received $135,758 and $128,700, respectively, and LARC
received $73,101 and $69,300, respectively.



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

NOTE 15--CONTINGENCIES

The Entity participates in a number of Federal and State assisted grant programs and contracts. Such
programs may be subject to financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The
amounts, if any, of expenses which may be disallowed by a grantor agency cannot be determined at this
time, although the Entity expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 16--SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 30, 2018 which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.
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SCHEDULE I

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Federal Granting Agency/Recipient
State Agency/Grant Program/State
Grant Number

Federal
Catalogue
Number

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Pass Through Payments from the City of Manchester, New Hampshire
Community Development Block Grants/State's program and
Non-Entitlement Grants in Hawaii

Received directly from U.S. Treasury Department
Fair Housing Initiatives Program
#FPEI61013-01-01

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Pass Through Payments from the County of Strafford, New Hampshire
Justice Systems Response to Families

Received directly from U.S. Treasury Department
Legal Assistance for Victims
#2016-WL-AX-0037

Pass Through Payments from New Hampshire Department of Justice
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention
#2016-WF-AX-0045

Crime Victim Assistance
#2015-VA-GX-0007

Violence Against Women Formula Grants
#2017W066

Total Department of Justice

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Pass Through Payments from New Hampshire Bureau
of Elderly and Adult Services
Special Programs for the Aging - Title 111, Part B - Grants
for Supportive Services and Senior Centers
#0595484810107820000

Total Department of Health and Human Services

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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14.228

14.408

16.021

16.524

16.540

16.575

16.588

93.044

Total
Federal
Expenditures

Passed Through
to Subrecipients

3 1,080

309,765

310,845

2,069

233,983

39,198

15,485

259,003

50,293

48,916

583,169

65,778

120,295

120,295

$ 1,014,309

b 65,778




NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 1--BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal
award activity of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. under programs of the federal government for
the year ended December 31, 2017. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of New Hampshire Legal
Assistance, Inc, it is not intended to and does not present the net assets, changes in net assets, or cash
flows of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.

NOTE 2--SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis of
accounting, which is described in Note 1 to New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s financial

statements. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursements.

NOTE 3--INDIRECT COST RATE

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. has not elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4--RELATIONSHIP TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The recognition of expenditures of federal awards has been reported in the Entity’s financial statements
as program services and management and general expenses.

16



gVACHON CLUKAY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

608 Chestnut Street » Manchester, New Hampshire 03104

& COMPANY PC (603) 622-7070 » Fax: (603} 622-1452 » www.vachonclukay.com

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of New Hampshire Legal
Assistance, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of
December 31, 2017, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 30, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered New Hampshire
Legal Assistance, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of New
Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a rcasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficicneies in internal control that might be matcrial
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

17



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether New Hampshire Legal Assistance,
Inc.’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire C/Qw_g» I g

March 30, 2018
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,%VACHON CLUKAY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

C PC 008 Chestnut Street « Manchester, New Hampshire 03104
& OMPANY (603) 622-7070 » Fax: (603) 622-1452 = www.vachonclukay.com

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM
AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s major federal programs for the year
ended December 31, 2017. New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s major federal programs are identified
in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of New Hampshire Legal
Assistance, Inc.’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and
the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of New Hampshire
Legal Assistance, Inc.’s compliance.



Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered New Hampshire Legal
Assistance, Inc.’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Legal
Assistance, Inc.’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire % 0 9

March 30, 2018
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New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended December 31,2017

Section I--Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X ___ none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X _no
Federal Awards

Internal Control over major programs:
" Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with
2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes X _no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
16.524 Legal Assistance for Victims
16.575 Crime Victim Assistance
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B program: $ 750.000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X __no

21



Section II--Financial Statement Findings

There were no findings relating to the financial statements required to be reported by GAGAS.

Section III--Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no findings and questioned costs as defined under 2 CFR 200.516(a).
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

Combining Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2017

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and equivalents
Cash, restricted
Investments
Grants and contracts receivable
Contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses
Security deposits
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Land, building and equipment (net)
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deposits held for others
Current portion of note payable
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Note payable, less current portion

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

New Hampshire

Campaign for

Legal Assistance  Legal Services Eliminations Total
$ 1,140,027 $ 118,077 $ 1,258,104
29,610 29,610
2,378 2,378
3,661,256 3,661,256
77,842 5,000 (77,842) 5,000
32,690 32,690
13,850 13,850
4,957,653 123,077 (77,842) 5,002,888
255,958 255,958
255,958 - - 255,958
$ 5,213,611 $ 123,077 $ (77,842) $§ 5,258,846
$ 8,122 $ 117,077 $ (77,842) $ 47,357
151,064 151,064
29,610 29,610
11,000 11,000
199,796 117,077 (77,842) 239,031
18,000 18,000
18,000 - - 18,000
217,796 117,077 (77,842) 257,031
1,055,555 1,055,555
3,940,260 6,000 3,946,260
4,995,815 6,000 - 5,001,815
$ 123,077 $ (77,842) § 5,258,846

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS § 5,213,611
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

Combining Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2016

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and equivalents
Cash, restricted
Investments
Grants and contracts receivable
Contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses
Security deposits
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Contributions receivable
Land, building and equipment (net)
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deposits held for others
Current portion of note payable
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Note payable, less current portion
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

New Hampshire =~ Campaign for

Legal Assistance  Legal Services Eliminations Total
$ 1,311,690 $ 116,785 $ 1,428,475
50,494 50,494
2,283 2,283
4,153,203 4,153,203
114,712 56,851 $  (114,712) 56,851
25,429 25,429
13,850 13,850
5,671,661 173,636 (114,712) 5,730,585
5,000 5,000
248,643 248,643
248,643 5,000 - 253,643
$ 5,920,304 $ 178,636 $§ (114,712) § 5,984,228
$ 19,191 $ 163,999 § (114,712) $ 68,478
132,540 132,540
50,494 50,494
11,000 11,000
213,225 163,999 (114,712) 262,512
30,000 30,000
30,000 - - 30,000
243,225 163,999 (114,712) 292,512
1,032,094 1,032,094
4,644,985 14,637 4,659,622
5,677,079 14,637 - 5,691,716
S 178,636 $§ (114,712) $ 5,984,228

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS §_ 5,920,304
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
Combining Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

New Hampshire Campaign for

Legal Assistance  Legal Services Eliminations Total
CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
SUPPORT AND REVENUE:
New Hampshire Bar Foundation - IOLTA $ 281,458 $ 281,458
Government grants and contracts 674,995 674,995
United Ways 70,308 70,308
Contributions - Foundations and Other 332,525 332,525
Contributions - Campaign for Legal Services 135,758 $ 283,894 $ (135,758) 283,894
Case revenue 135,991 135,991
Investment income 1,273 ) 1,278
Net assets released from restrictions 2,109,845 14,637 2,124,482
TOTAL UNRESTRICTED SUPPORT AND REVENUE 3,742,153 298,536 (135,758) 3,904,931
EXPENSES:
Program services:
Domestic violence project 577,525 577,525
Housing justice project 673,153 673,153
Senior law project 215,234 215,234
Youth law project 155,567 155,567
Other civil legal services 1,591,643 1,591,643
Total program services 3,213,122 - - 3,213,122
Supporting services:
Fund raising 62,823 298,536 (135,758) 225,601
Management and general 442,747 442,747
Total supporting services 505,570 298,536 (135,758) 668,348
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,718,692 298,536 (135,758) 3,881,470
INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 23,461 - - 23,461
CHANGES IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSET
New Hampshire Bar Foundation - IOLTA 201,042 201,042
Government grants and contracts 785,403 785,403
United Ways 54,750 54,750
Contributions - Foundations and Other 363,925 363,925
Contributions - Campaign for Legal Services 6,000 6,000
Temporarily restricted net assets released from restrictions (2,109,845) (14,637) (2,124,482)
DECREASE IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED
NET ASSETS (704,725) (8,637) - (713,362)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (681,264) (8,637) - (689,901)
NET ASSETS - January 1 5,677,079 14,637 - 5,691,716
NET ASSETS - December 31 $ 4995815 $ 6,000 $ - $ 5,001,815

26



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
Combining Statement of Activitics
For the Year Ended Decembcer 31, 2016

New Hampshire Campaign for

Legal Assistance  Legal Services Eliminations Tota]
CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
SUPPORT AND REVENUE:
New Hampshire Bar Foundation - IOLTA $ 249,083 3 249,083
Government grants and contracts 900,763 900,763
United Ways 96,823 96,823
Contributions - Foundations and Other 265,444 265,444
Contributions - Campaign for Lega! Services 128,700 3 277,040 5 (128,700) 277,040
Case revenue 260,966 260,966
Investment income 990 10 1,000
Net assets released from restrictions 1,492,339 13,777 1,506,116
TOTAL UNRESTRICTED SUPPORT AND REVENUE 3,395,108 290,827 (128,700) 3,557,235
EXPENSES:
Program services:
Domestic violence project 168,677 168,677
Housing justice project 676,106 676,106
Senior law project 226,177 226,177
Youth law project 57,598 57,598
Other civil legal services 1,646,241 1,646,241
Total program services 2,774,799 - - 2,774,799
Supporting services:
Fund raising 7,270 290,827 (128,700) 169,397
Management and general 601,905 601,905
Total supporting services 609,175 290,827 (128,700) 771,302
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,383,974 290,827 (128,700) 3,546,101
INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 11,134 - - 11,134
CHANGES IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSET
New Hampshire Bar Foundation - IOLTA 177,917 177,917
Government grants and contracts 3,275,103 3,275,103
United Ways 30,633 30,633
Contributions - Foundations and Other 550,176 550,176
Contributions - Campaign for Legal Services 14,637 14,637
Temporarity restricted net assets released from restrictions (1,492,339) (13,777) (1,506,116)
INCREASE IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED
NET ASSETS 2,541,490 860 - 2,542,350
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 2,552,624 860 - 2,553,484
NET ASSETS - January 1 3,124,455 13,777 - 3,138,232
NET ASSETS - December 31 $ 5,677,079 $ 14,637 3 - $ 5,691,716
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE

Board of Directors

ANNUAL BOARD RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING FUNDING APPLICATIONS

November 8, 2017

Be it resolved that the Executive Director of New Hampshire Legal Assistance

(NHLA) and/or her designee is authorized to seek and apply for funds from:

Endowment for Health,

Local Community Development Offices,

New Hampshire Bar Foundation (IOLTA and other),

New Hampshire Charitable Foundation and affiliated foundations and funds,

New Hampshire Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services,

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services,

New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority,

New Hampshire Department of Justice,

New Hampshire Legislature (for renewal and possible expansion of NHLA's state appropriation),
Administration on Aging,

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development,

U. S. Department of Justice,

United Ways,

and is further authorized to apply for other public and private grants, contracts, and
awards, and donations, for civil legal services to the poor, to be used for general revenues
and for special projects, and is further authorized to execute such documents as

necessary to accept such funds in the name of New Hampshire Legal Assistance.

This resolution shall remain in effect through December 31, 2018.

Adopted by the Board of Directors

November 8, 2017



Michelle E. Wangerin

EDUCATION

Boston College Law School Newton, MA
Juris Doctor ' May, 2006
Awards, 2004 Equal Justice Works Educational Scholarship Recipient

‘Organizations  Public Interest Law Foundation: 2005-2006 Vice President; 2006 Alumni Auction Director; 2005 Auction
and Activities:  Director; 2004 Auction Comimittee, Corporate Donations Co-Chair
Inuigration Law Soclety (2003-2004): Immigration Trips Donations Committee, Corporate Donations
Chair, Public Interest Immigration Law Spring Break Trip in Miami

Dartmouth College Hanover, NH

Bachelor of Arts, Major:  Psychology, Minor: Government June, 2003
Dartmouth Language Study Abroad, Berlin, Germany

EMPLOYMENT

New Hampshire Legal Assistance Portsmouth, NH

Staff Attorney / Youth Law Project Director January, 2010-Present

Provide civil legal advocacy to court involved youth at the administrative, circuit court and New Hampshire Supreme Court levels to
secure necessary educational, health, and community based services. Represent youth at major school disciplinary hearings. Engage in
policy advocacy to increase statewide use of evidence based practices in education and juvenile justice. Conduct local and regional
trainings on interplay between special education and juvenile justice.

NH Public Defender Concord, NH
Staff Attorney January, 2007-January, 2010
Provided legal defense to indigent juveniles and adults charged with misdemeanor and felony level offenses. Trained incoming public
defenders on juvenile delinquency law and dispositions. Selected to attend Juvenile Defender Leadership Suminit in October 2008.

Disabilities Rights Center Concord, NH
Law Clerk August 2006-January 2007
Served as court appointed GAL for children in need of educational services. Negotiated with school districts to ensure children with
disabilities receive proper educational services. Engaged in the formal complaint process with the New Hampshire Departinent of
Education. Researched legal and policy issues in disability law areas including special education, Medicaid, and reasonable
accommodations.

Boston College Legal Assistance Bureau Waltham, MA
Legal Assistant, Women and the Law Clinic through Boston College Law School Fall 2005-Spring 2006
Drafted and argued civil motions in family court. Negotiated with both attorneys and pro se parties in various areas including housing,
workman’s compensation claims, and domestic relations, including child custody and support. Secured SSI and SSDI benefits for
clients and assisted in enforcing judgments. Filed complaint on behalf of a client to the Massachusetts Commission Against
Discrimination and successfully negotiated housing transfer.

The Legal Center for People with Disabilities and Older People Denver, CO

Special Education Departiment Legal Intern ) Summer 2004
Drafied federal complaint and rebuttal for special education case. Conducted legal research and drafted memoranda on school of
choice, compensatory education, IEP procedure, and discipline issues, along with a more extensive memorandum on the appropriate
statute of limitations for federal complaints, due process hearings, state level review hearings, and civil actions in federal district court,

American Bar Association Washington, DC
Conmnission on Mental and Physical Disabilities Department Intern Summer 2002
Proofread and cite-checked for the Mental and Physical Disability Law Reporter and the Handbook on Mental Disability Law, by
John Parry, 1.). and Philips Gilliam, J.D. Prepared the Reportet’s 2001 Title [ survey. Drafted major case headlines for Reporter.
Assisted in outreach to disability law community. Updated and maintained ABA lawyer database.

Community Connections Craig, AK
Conununity Living Support Assistant Fall 2001
Implemented afier-school behavioral and academic programs for children with autism. Aided in re-evaluating and updating obsolete
programs. Provided respite relief to the families of children with autism.




Megar &, Ditlon

_‘-’/,.(/’;(%7(/

Accomplished paralegal/adminisiralive professional with a Bachelor’s Degree from Roger
Williams University. Looking for employment with a non-profit or charitable organization that
would incorporate legal or other forms of advocacy for the bensfit of individuals/families. 8+
years experience in both corporate and non-profit firms. Praised for interpersonal skills in
dealing with both clients and adverse agencies. Highly organized and motivated. Strong multi-
tasking, whiting and communication skills, Exercised independent judgment demonstrated by
successfully representing disabled individuals in over 200 claims for Social Sacurity Disability
and Medicaid benefits while also performing support work for multiple atiorneys. Demonsirated
creativity and motivation by organizing employee participation in fundraising events to gain over
$10,000 in donations to support our legal advocacy work.

73 «

Gberernce:
Paralegal Advocate, New Hompshire Legal Assistance, Manchester, NH 2007-Prasent
Paralegal advocate for the non-profit legal firm of New hampshire Legal Assistance. Responsible
for representing low income individuals/families in appeal claims for the denial of Social
Security and Medicatd benefits. Responsible for collecting medical evidence, drafting opening/
closing statements, drofling direct testimony exam questions and reprasenting clients at
administrative appeal hearings as their primary advocate. Also responsible for performing
support work for 2-3 allorneys including drafting record requests, interviewing clients, legal
research, compiling data for grant reports, and organizing preseniations/conferences for area
agencies. Responsible for organizing a statewide conference hosted by our organization to
meet grant obligations under the Depariment of Housing and Urban Development in May 2010.

. Paralegal, Sheehan, Phinney, Bass &Green, Manchester, NH 20062007

Maintain phone calls, calendars, and billing for five attorneys. Draft client correspondence and
legal documents (i.e. Memos, Purchase and Sales Agreements, Annual Meeting Minutes,
Employment Contracts, etc.). Perform conflict checks using Elite and open new client matters.

. Maintain and update filing system using Microsoft Word, Excel and Elite. Assist in set up for

presentations and conferences. Cover for main receplion when requested.

Courlroom Clerk If, Concord Distrigt Court, Concord, NH' 20032006
Facilitate couriroom proceedings for daily arraignment and trial sessions. Operate and maintain
recording equipment for video erraignments from the Merrimack County House of Corrections
and other facilities. Train new employees in courtroom procedure and use of recording
equipment. Daily interaction with the public in both criminal and civil matiers. Open new case
files and maintajn court docket and filing system. Take oaths and notarize criminal complaints as
a Justice of the Peace.

Adminisirative Assistant, Windsar Brook Property Advisors, Dover, NH Summaer- 2003
Maintained and organized various real estate properly files. Recorded and updated account

- balances for rental properties using Microsoft Excel. Provided assistance in design and

distribution of pamphlets to advertise various properties. Calculated square footage and
surveyed suites for repairs and improvements. Answered phones.

2] .
Cebetcettion . :
Roger Williams University, Bristol, RI— B.S in Criminal Justice, Minor, Psychology 2003




KAITLIN G. GAUTHIER

LICENSURES AND EDUCATION

Admitted to Practice in: Maine; Massachusetts; New Hampshire; and the United States District Court
District of New Hampshire.

University of Maine School of Law, Portland, Maine

Juris Doctor, cum laude, May 2011

» Member: Trial Team; scored 2™ place for points in 2011 Regional Competition.

*» Class rank: unranked (because transferred from Vermont Law School); top half if ranked.
* Member: Environmental Law Society and International Law Society.

» Student Member: American Bar Association and Maine Trial Lawyers Association.

Saint Michael’s College, Colchester, Vermont

Bachelor of Arts, cum laude, Sociology-Anthropology and Psychology, 2003

= Member, Psi Chi National Honor Society; Recipient, Saint Michael’s Scholarship.
« Research Methods & Statistics Tutor.,

» Intern, Vermont Department of Corrections.

School for International Training, Melbourne, Australia

Semester Abroad, January - May 2002

» Studied aboriginal health issues.

= Volunteered at Victorian Aboriginal Health Service; facilitated informal discussions on alcohol and substance
abuse; taught life skills; researched causes, effects, and prevention of substance abuse by Aborigines.

LEGAL EXPERIENCE

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Portsmouth, New Hampshire

Staff Attorney, April 2017 —- Present

= Attorney for the Domestic Violence Advocacy Project: provide onsite support at crisis centers for
victims of domestic violence, stalking and sexual assault; advise clients on the 173-B filing and hearing
process; serve as a resource for crisis center advocates; and represent clients in stalking and 173-B final
protective order hearings, motions and appeals.

= Attorney for the Youth Law Project: provide individual representation and investigation of school
discipline and special education cases; conduct reviews school files; attend IEP meetings; negotiate IEP
contents and services on behalf of students; provide advice on OCR complaint processes; and assist
with drafting and filing of DOE complaint.

Robinson, Kriger & McCallum, Portland, Maine

Associate Attorney, August 2012 — March 2017

= Represent employers and insurers in all aspects of workers’ compensation litigation and appeals
including: mediations; lump sum settlements; and hearings before the Workers’ Compensation Board.

= Depose medical experts, insurance adjusters, treating physicians, and labor market survey experts.

= Complete written submissions including: closing arguments, proposed findings, and appellate briefs.

= Assist with social security disability claims and appeals, personal injury and timber trespass cases.

= Assist insurance companies through audit and compliance processes.

» Serve as Continuing Legal Education lecturer at annual Workers” Compensation Summits.

Law Offices of Russell J. Goldsmith, York, Maine
Associate Attorney, August 2011 — August 2012
» Assist primarily with Social Security Disability Claims and Appeals.
= Prepare representation paperwork, Social Security requests for reconsideration, and requests for hearings.
« Conduct intakes with potential clients and handle case management of current clients.
= Also assist with motor vehicle hearings, personal injury and medical malpractice cases.

a PLLC S i
Flagg Law, . 3I:'ort mouth, New Hayipshu;c .
Page 1 of 3



Legal Assistant, Summer 2010 (full-time) and April 2012 — July 2012 (part-time)

= Assist primarily with Foreclosure cases, and also with Divorce, Probate and Landlord/Tenant cases.

= Conduct legal research and draft numerous legal documents including various pleadings, affidavits,
subpoenas, writ of summons, motions for summary judgment and assorted other motions, witness and
exhibit lists, interrogatories, and client memoranda.

Cumberland Legal Aid Clinic, Portland, Maine

Student Attorney, Spring Semester 2011

» Admitted to Bar as Student Lawyer under Maine Rules.

= Counseled and represented clients in a variety of criminal, juvenile and family matters, including
protection from abuse cases in Maine District Court/Lewiston.

» Drafted motions, orders and complaints; negotiated with opposing counsel; attended hearings and trials.

= Handled a complex interstate custody dispute under the UCCJEA.

= Served as Lawyer of the Day at Preble Street Youth Center, providing legal advice to juveniles.

Wensley & Jones PLLC, Rochester, New Hampshire

Legal Intern, November 2009 - January 2010

= Researched mortgage banker license requirements, and bankruptcy, contempt, and bank liability issues.
= Drafted various legal documents and completed overdue individual Federal Income Tax Returns.

« Filed bankruptcy petitions and attended court proceedings, including bankruptcy hearings.

The Law Office of Carl Potvin, Rochester, New Hampshire

Legal Intern, Summer 2008

= Conducted legal research, drafted correspondence and various legal documents.
= Met with clients, assisted with preparation for court, and attended court hearings.
= Performed title searches at Registry and performed general clerical duties.

OTHER EXPERIENCE

World Agroforestry Center & University of California-Santa Cruz, Nairobi, Kenya

Research Assistant, September - December 2005

= Performed research on water access in rural western Kenya for the Center for Global, International, and
Regional Studies in collaboration with the World Agroforestry Center.

= Assisted with interviews and data compilation; results were presented to the Kenyan Ministry of Water.

Cornucopia Consultancy & Amnesty International, Melbourne, Australia
Fundraiser, August - December 2004
= Raised funds for Amnesty International; worked on the Stop Violence Against Women campaign.

Our House, Dover, New Hampshire

Case Manager & Residential Counselor, August 2003 - August 2004

* Provided counseling and supervision of day-to-day activities of residents and completed comprehensive
monthly progress reports.

= Met regularly with assigned residents to review and discuss progress on treatment and to assist in
securing employment.

Various Other Employment (1998-2007), including fitness center manager, paraprofessional in special
needs classroom, campground assistant manager, orphanage volunteer (Kenya), and substitute teacher.

Volunteer Positions

= Board Member: Caring Unlimited, Sanford, Maine (June 2015 — Present).

= Board Member: New Lawyers Section of the Maine State Bar Association (January 2013-March 2017).
Chair: community service subcommittee of the New Lawyers Section (January 2014-March 2017).

* Mentor: for Maine Law students (2012-2017).

* Fundraiser: Campaign for Justice (2015-2017).

Page 2 of 3



SKILLS, INTERESTS & ACCOLADES

= Trained in Westlaw and LexisNexis; proficient with various other software applications.

* Enjoy competing in road races and triathlons; also enjoy camping, traveling and making jewelry.
= Named as a 2015 Star Volunteer Fundraiser for the Campaign for Justice.

= Selected to New England Super Lawyers 2016 “Rising Star” list of top rated attorneys.

Page 3 of 3



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Michelle Wangerin Project Director/Attorney $82,563 12.9% $10,650

Kaitlin Roy Staff Attorney $69,342 7.0% $ 4,790

Megan Dillon Project Paralegal $63,122 8.8% $ 5,535




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: 8S-2018-DCYF-07-SAG-04

State Advisory Group (SAG) Award for Community Prevention Services

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
NH Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857
1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
The Upper Room A Family Resource Center 36 Tsienneto Road
Derry NH 03038
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number
603-437-8477 05-95-42-421410-79060000- March 31, 2019 $21,433
072-500575
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
E. Maria Reinemann, Esq. 603-271-9330

Director of Contracts and Procurement

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

%ﬂf,& ﬁuﬂm Rrenda Qum«s\cem Eyee e Dizdo

1.13 Acknowledgement: Statée 6f N‘ W@M\th County of V' tish &S b 8,\

On Ap\,q\ {3, 203§ , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 ture of Nota é’:bhc or Justice of the Peace

cw\e DIANE E. CASALE, Notary Public
[Seal] My Commission Expires March 12, 2019

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace
AR € CAS A€ N 0{-&5‘1

1. / genpcy Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
é% Date: L/ol‘f"/? (%MBA/@ /I’) ﬁisoc@él &fmm

1.16" Approval by the N. H/Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applzcable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

BWMV g A-\Mfﬁﬁ»»f L;/,?o / g

1.18 Approval by the Governor andﬁecutive Coyhcil (if %ﬁlica

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date”).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Page 2 of 4
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.-H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers” Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreerment.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Advisory Group (SAG) Award for Prevention Services for the Community

Exhibit A

Scope of Services
1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1 The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2  The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.3 The Contractor shall provide juvenile court diversion, delinquency prevention and
intervention services (the Program) that focus on behavioral health and/or
disproportionate minority contact for youth up to eighteen (18) years of age which
assist in the reduction of youth entering the juvenile justice system.

14 For the purposes of this Contract, the Contractor shall be identified as sub-recipient
in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200.330 and 2 CFR 200.331. The
Contractor and sub-recipient will be referred to as Vendor in this Exhibit.

2. Scope of Services

2.1 The Contractor shall employ a Diversion Coordinator to manage the Greater Derry
Juvenile Diversion program (GDJD) , including, but not limited to:

2.1.1  Accepting referrals from police departments.

2.1.2 Conducting intake interviews with juvenile clients, including, but not limited
to:

2.1.2.1  Documenting background information.
2.1.2.2 Discussing trigger incident with client.

2.1.2.3 Reviewing program requirements with juvenile clients and
parents.

2.2 The Contractor shall ensure the Diversion Coordinator or Juvenile Diversion
Assistant schedules and attends a contract hearing with each juvenile client and the
Review Team, including, but not limited to:

2.21 Developing a plan of accountability for the juvenile client, which may
include, but is not limited to:

2.2.1.1  Arestitution plan.

2.2.1.2 One-on-one workshops to address the specific incident.
2.2.1.3 Aresearch paper of project.

2.2.1.4 A personal development project.

Upper Room, A Family Resource Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Advisory Group (SAG) Award for Prevention Services for the Community

Exhibit A

2.2.1.5 Aformal apology.
2.2.2 Providing referrals to appropriate programs, including, but not limited to:
2.2.21 The Adolescent Wellness Program.
2.2.2.2 Community Service Learning Opportunities Program.
2.2.2.3 Shoplifting workshops.
2.2.3 Providing a contract end date to the Review Team.
2.2.4 Developing a contract for the juvenile client.
2.2.,5 Presenting the contract to the juvenile client.

2.3  The Contractor shall schedule and facilitate a review hearing with the review team,
the juvenile client, and parents no later than two (2) days from the contract
completion date, including, but not limited to:

2.3.1 Reviewing the case for contract completion.
2.3.2 Notifying the referring police department.

24 The Contractor shall provide an Adolescent Welliness Program which includes, but
is not limited to:

241 The URParents Support Group, which will provide services for the parents
of juvenile clients until the juvenile exits the program.

242 The Challenge Program that focuses on drug and alcohol education and
self-awareness for juveniles.

2.4.3 Take Control workshops that focus on teenage anger management.

25 The Contractor shall provide the Community Service Learning Opportunities
program in the towns of Derry, Londonderry, Sandown, Chester, and Windham\,
including, but not limited to:

2.5.1 Informing juvenile court diversion advocacy groups of enforcement and
detention issues.

2.5.2 Promoting the use of community-based services as an alternative to court
or detention.

2.5.3 Identifying community service opportunities.

2.6 The Contractor shall create a community service work plan for each juvenile client,
no later than five (5) days from admission to GDJD, including, but not limited to:

2.6.1 A writing assignment.

2.6.2 A written performance evaluation.

2.6.3 Arecord of each activity assigned, including, but not limited to:
2.6.3.1 Type of community service.
2.6.3.2 Date(s) of community service.
2.6.3.3 Length of time in days required to complete.

Upper Room, A Family Resource Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services

State Advisory Group (SAG) Award for Prevention Services for the Community

Exhibit A

2.7

2.8

2.9
2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

The Contractor shall provide Youth Education for Shoplifting (YES) workshops for
juvenile clients that focus on the impacts of shoplifting/theft, as defined in RSA 6:37,
including, but not limited to, CD/Workbook home-based study materials.

The Contractor shall provide services through Greater Derry Family Outreach,
including, but no limited to:

2.8.1 In-home education and family counseling, on topics to include, but not
limited to:

2.8.1.1  Problems with communication in the family.

2.8.1.2 Questions about parenting teenagers.

2.8.1.3 Feelings of isolation.

2.8.1.4 Concerns about alcohol or substance use by a juvenile.

2.8.1.5 Bullying, arguing or fighting among family members
2.8.2 Groups and workshops that focus on parenting issues.

2.8.3 Information on other community-based services that may be available to
juveniles and their families.

2.8.4 Assistance with enrolliment for community based services.
2.8.5 Education services provided by experienced counselors.

2.8.6 Flexible counseling schedules that include evening hours.

The Contractor shall perform administrative tasks to support the GDJD.

The Contractor shall communicate by telephone, e-mail or in person, with
governmental entities, about the use of community-based alternatives to court
and/or sentencing.

The Contractor shall develop, coordinate and maintain the GDJD communications
strategy, including, but not limited to:

2.11.1 Media relations.
2.11.2 Publications.

2.11.3 Social media.

2.11.4 Website maintenance.

The Contractor shall recruit, hire, and supervise interns and/or program volunteers
in order to support campaigns, communications and marketing work.

The Contractor shall direct the release of information to media contacts, including,
but not limited to:

2.13.1 Scheduling press conferences,
2.13.2 Releasing reports.
2.13.3 Responding to media requests.

Upper Room, A Family Resource Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials:
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2.14 The Contractor shall maintain and enhance relationships with local, state and
national organizations working on juvenile court diversion initiatives.

2.15 The Contractor shall ensure the Diversion Coordinator evaluates and documents
program outcomes to inform best practices and yield evidence to support advocacy
related to youth court diversion efforts in the State, including, but not limited to:

2.15.1 Ensuring proper collection of individual and program outcome information to
analyze project effectiveness.

2.15.2 Assisting in collecting one and three year recidivism data to measure long-
term impact.

2.15.3 Providing written and verbal analysis on what is working and not working.

2.15.4 Presenting and reporting on GDJD activities at community meetings and
conferences.

3. Staffing

3.1 The Contractor shall provide staffing that includes, but is not limited to:

3.1.1 A Diversion Coordinator, for not less than one (1) full-time equivalent (1.0
FTE) of at least 40 hours each week.

3.1.2 A Juvenile Diversion Assistant, for not less than .25 FTE of at least ten (10)
hours per week.

3.1.3 A Community Service Learning Opportunities (CSLO) & Youth Education
for Shoplifting (YES) Coordinator, one (1) full-time equivalent (1.0 FTE) of
at least 40 hours each week.

3.1.4  An Operations Coordinator, for not less than 2 hours per week (.05 FTE).
3.1.5 A Financial Support person, for not less than 2 hours per week (.05 FTE).

3.1.6 A Marketing and Events Coordinator, for not less than 2 hours per week
(.05 FTE).

3.1.7 A Database Specialist, for not less than 2 hours per week (.05 FTE).
3.1.8 A Supervisor, for not less than 2 hours per week (.05 FTE).

4. Reporting Requirements

41 The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports the Division of Children, Youth, and
Families (DCYF), including, but not limited to:

4.1.1 A narrative summary of activities conducted in Section 2, including, but not
be limited to:

4.1.1.1  Descriptions for all diversion activities, including, but not limited to,
41111 Dates.
41112 Times.
4.1.1.1.3  Duration.
41.1.1.4  Number of participants

Upper Room, A Family Resource Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials: _&
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Exhibit A

4.1.1.2 Barriers and challenges experienced by the Contractor during the
quarter.

41.1.3 A plan to address barriers and challenges for the next quarter.

41.1.4 Backup documentation detailing actual expenditures for approved
contract related activities.

41.1.5 Copies of all grant proposals.
41.1.6 Copies of all program reports.
4.1.2 Demographic information that includes, but is not limited to:

4.1.2.1 Number of juvenile clients served by race, ethnicity, age and
gender.

4.1.2.2 Number of juvenile clients who successfully complete the
programs in which they were enrolled.

4.1.2.3 Number of juvenile clients who terminated from a program prior
to program completion.

4.1.24 Number of juvenile clients who obtain a finding of true on an
unrelated petition after beginning a program.

4.1.2.5 Referral sources.

4.1.26 Number of juvenile clients who participated in each program
component.

4.2 The Contractor shall provide reports to DCYF, on or before:

4.2.1  April 30th for all activities performed from January 1st through March 31st
of the current year.

4.2.2 July 31st for all activities performed from April 1st through June 30th of the
current year.

4.2.3 October 31st for all activities performed from July 1st through September
31st of the current year.

424 January 31st for all activities performed from October 1st through
December 31st of the previous year.

5. Performance Measures
5.1 The Contractor Shall:
5.1.1  Track the number of youths who are provided service through the GDJD.
5.1.2 Measure the percentage of youths who complete the diversion program.
5.1.3  Track the number of referrals from each source to the GDJD.

5.1.4 Measure the percentage of recidivism among youths served by the GDJD,
including, but not limited to:

5.1.4.1 Recidivism at one year.

Upper Room, A Family Resource Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials: %
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Advisory Group (SAG) Award for Prevention Services for the Community

Exhibit A

5.1.4.2 Recidivism at three years.

6. Deliverables

6.1 The Contractor shall provide services for each youth admitted referred to the GDJD,
including, but not limited to:

6.1.1 Conducting an assessment to determine individual strengths and
weaknesses.

6.1.2 Developing a contract based on individual needs.
6.1.3  Offering community service opportunities.
6.1.4  Providing educational resources on the topic of substance abuse.

6.2 The Contractor shall develop and distribute printed materials that explain and
support juvenile diversion.

6.3  The Contractor shall maintain office hours for the purpose of meeting with clients,
after 4 pm, for a minimum of six (6) hours each week.

6.4 The Contractor shall ensure that GDJD:
6.4.1 Maintains an application or resume on file for each employee or volunteer.

6.4.2 Conducts criminal background checks for all staff, subcontractor employees,
and volunteers who have direct contact with clients, no later than ten days
from the approval date of the Contract or any amendments thereafter,
including, but not limited to, completing a New Hampshire Department of
Safety Criminal Record Release Authorization (Form ID #DSSP256).

6.4.3 Secures and checks references for all volunteers.
6.4.4 Provides training or orientation for all new staff and volunteers.

6.4.5 Follows written procedures for transferring diversion cases to other
jurisdictions or diversion programs.

6.4.6 Maintains records that include, but are not limited to:
6.4.6.1 A written juvenile court diversion process.
6.4.6.2 Written eligibility guidelines for participation in GDJD.
6.4.6.3 Diversion participation forms.
6.4.6.4 Confidential release of information forms.
6.4.6.5 Signed diversion contract for all juvenile clients.
6.4.6.6 Regularly updated schedules of fees.
6.4.6.7 An annual operating budget.
6.4.6.8 An annual report on organizational activities.
6.4.6.9 A copy of each case closing or completion letter.

6.4.7 Has a written process for participants who fulfill contractual obligations and
exit the program.
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6.4.8 Provides written notification of completion to all referral sources.
6.4.9 Provides a list of community resources to the parents of each referred client.
6.5  The Contractor shall ensure that:

6.5.1  One hundred twenty-five (125) families receive services available through
this Contract.

6.5.2 One hundred six (106) youth referred for services successfully complete all
program requirements.

6.5.3 Thirty-six (36) juvenile community service learning opportunities are
completed.

6.5.4 Four (4) YES programs are delivered.

6.5.5 Forty-five (45) contract agreements are executed with juvenile participants,
and successfully completed.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Advisory Group (SAG) Award for Community Prevention Services

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

This contract is funded with funds from the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #16.540,
U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention in providing services
pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services. The contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A,
Scope of Services in compliance with funding requirements.

1.

The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation on Form P37,
General Provisions Block 1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A,
Scope of Services.

2. Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis only for actual expenditures.
Expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line item budgets shown in Exhibits B-1.

3. Payment for services shall be made as foliows:

3.1 The Contractor will submit quarterly reports as specified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services,
Sections 3, with an invoice for reimbursement of actual expenses incurred during the
quarter, for a total of four (4) invoices per year. The State shall make payment to the
Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for Contractor services
provided pursuant to this Agreement.

3.2 Invoices and reports identified in Section 3.1 must be submitted to:

Pamela Sullivan

Juvenile Justice Specialist

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division for Children, Youth and Families

1056 North River Road

Manchester, NH 03104

Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified in

Exhibit A, Section 3.

4. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than sixty (60) days after the Contract ends.
Failure to submit the invoice, and accompanying documentation could result in nonpayment.

5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or
Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not
been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

6. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at full
capacity at no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract period.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to
transfer the funds within the budget and within the price limitation, can be made by written
agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1.

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials

06/27/14 Page 1 of 5 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistieblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

{(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistieblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

{c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor’s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL.: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is

replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 inthe event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5.  Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:

H! l6} 13

Datel !
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that alt sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

4 1!&6)[6 M@@W(
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

” o« R

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and

“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and

Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the

attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

)i [headi_ @@Méﬂd@t?
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the

agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.
Exhibit G
Contractor Initials

Certification of Compliance with requirements pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations

and Whistleblower protections ~
6/27114 ‘
Rev. 10/21/14 Page 1 of 2 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

\7)}1% %ﬂﬁ i QWVW(

Date Name: &y’ MVO
Title: 8?(1(’//‘2“(/’? Qﬁ o
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

0 ﬂfw&ﬁ @/&1/)713‘7/ [
R
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=
L/
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.
a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Reguiations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j-  “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. /

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials
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“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

“Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his’her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

Health Insurance Portability Act )
Business Associate Agreement L_I
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

Exhibit | Contractor Initials _. %
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit . The Covered Entity may either inmediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

Department of Health and Human Services

The Upper Peam, JL’fOU/HiLt Despurt -

I\M Contractor
/ fL/ /fmw\/ﬁﬂ{ [

Signature of Authorizel Representative

(Basbi 4 Tdpn

Signature of AuthorizetdRepresehtative

Brendan_, uey seed

Namae of Authorized RepfeSentative
& -
ZZSSOCMzé &nmnﬁw—ef’

Name of Authorized Repre%@ntatlve

D yratie ByveethC

Title of Authorized Representative

-4 ~1§

Title of Authorized Representative
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Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SPeNoORwN =

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

‘4\ |6) pundb. Qumww

Date | Name: &r.epda. A
Title: Cye i€ ;g)l (c(
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: g[ a(,ﬁ g iz II Ll[g)

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your

business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of

1986\?/

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

/

Name;&ﬁm&ég J;M {4 @lqu Amount; 70' 420

Name: ,_ ' .__, Amount:
Name: o Amount:
Name:;,,. B | C g Amount:
Name: ____ ___ __ __ _ ~ Amount:
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A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. “Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, “ Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. “Computer Security Incident” shall have the same meaning “Computer Security
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. “Confidential Information” or “Confidential Data” means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (Pl), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User” means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. “Incident” means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. “Open Wireless Network” means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFl,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. “Personal Information” (or “PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. “Protected Health Information” (or “PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of “Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.
1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not

use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

iI. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application’s encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

lll. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section I1V. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State’s
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State’s Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This includes a
confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFl are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State’s Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PH! in
accordance with the agency’s documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor’s compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor’s procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4

Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

V4, Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials

DHHS Information
Security Requirements
Page 8 of 9 Date




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate

Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A.

DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHS contact for Information Security issues:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHS contact for Breach notifications:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE UPPER ROOM, A
FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on
July 30, 1986. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in

good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 81048
Certificate Number: 0004079817

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 11th day of April A.D. 2018.

G ok

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
L C/Aﬁ’/‘/ﬁyg ‘72/270 , do hereby certify that:

(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency,; cannot be contract signatory)

1.1 am a duly elected Officer of /’/8 ﬂﬂ/ﬂﬁé &ﬁl‘/ # /W//S/ igfﬁﬂfzﬁ é ///é’/i

(Agency Namék)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on / fZZZUé(J/’ @’Z/ 20/5
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the /?/%No/ﬁ Guaaishero  Scecitve 2 DFOL.

(Titlé of Contratt Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The for/g\oing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

he ¢3i qayof A0/ 20/%

(Date Contratt Signed)

8//7’[///(/5 7)27& is the duly elected {/0///‘/5/4,@‘/ of ﬁf Uﬂﬁpg %00/({
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Cont(ac#,l%ﬁf/ﬁ//y éfSOU/?C s ()d‘M
of the Agency.

LSt [

(Signature of the EleftedOfficer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County ofgu:' l b&&“bl{(é 1 )

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this / \3 day of APC; l , 20 lﬁ .
By C*VARLEUC R:{ 20

(Name of Elected OHitEr of the Agency)

b.J&-QgL

DIANE E. CASALE, Notary Public 4 (Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)
My Commission Expires March 12, 2019

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires: ‘5'/ IO‘L_/ 7‘7




ACORD’ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE oY
\ - 4/11/2018

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: [f the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONIACT Michael Caruso
FIAI/Cross Insurance PHONE . (603)669-3218 (FAAIé Noj: (603) 645-4331
1100 Elm Street EObhL¢s. mcaruso@crossagency . com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Manchester NH 03101 INSURER A :Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 18058
INSURED INSURER B NorGuard Ins Co 31470
The Upper Room a Family Resource Center INSURER C :
PO BOX 1017 INSURER D :
36 Tsienneto Road INSURER E :
Derry NH 03038-1017 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:17-18 All lines REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL[SUBR]| POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DOIYYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LTS
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
A —I CLAIMS-MADE E OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | $ 100,000
PHPK1677056 7/1/2017 | 7/1/2018 | MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
EN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000
X | poLicy D fES D Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 3,000,000
OTHER: Abuse or Molestation Selection | $ 1,000,000
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (Ea accident) $ 1,000,000
A ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
|| AROUNED SCHEDULED PHPR1677056 7/1/2017 | 7/1/2018 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
X | HIRED AUTOS AUTOS {Per accident) $
$
X | UMBRELLALIAB | X | occur EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
A EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 1,000,000
oep | X | ReTENTIONS 10,000 PHUR590872 7/1/2017 | 7/1/2018 $
WORKERS COMPENSATION 4464 PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN UFwC8 6 X | statute I l ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE (3a.) NE L
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A E.L. EACH ACCIDENT s 1,000,000
B | (Mandatory in NH) All officers Included 7/1/2017 | 7/1/2018 | L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 1,000,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 1,000,000
A | Professional Liability PHPK1677056 7/1/2017 7/1/2018 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedul

may be attached if more space Is required)

Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
State of NH THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Concord, NH 03301-3857

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Michael Caruso/JSC L RV Leers—

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INSO25 201401

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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The Upper Room Mission Statement

Strengthening individuals and families by providing them with the education and
resources needed to lead healthy, self-sufficient lives.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
The Upper Room, A Family Resource Center
Derry, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Upper Room, A Family
Resource Center (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position.
as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related statements of activities, changes in net assets,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the

financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance- about whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatements of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of The Upper Room, A Family Resource Center as of June 30,
2017 and 2016, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

Q bantiensty  Coor FLEC

Penchansky & Co., PLLC
Certified Public Accountants
Manchester, New Hampshire

December 10, 2017
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THE UPPER ROOM, A FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER
Statements of Financial Position

As of June 30,
Assets
Temporarily 2017 2016
Unrestricted Restricted Totals Totals

Current Assets:

Cash and Equivalents $ 260,705 $ 58,677 § 319,382 § 272,552

Accounts Receivable 14,195 0 14,195 29,852

Prepaid Expenses 2,394 0 2,394 2,343

Total Current Assets 277,294 58,677 335,971 304,747
Fixed Assets:

Leasehold Improvements 47,568 0 47,568 47,568

Equipment and Fumiture 53,823 0 53,823 24,241

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (36,321) 0 (36,321) (31,366)

Net Fixed Assets 65,070 0 65,070 40,443

Total Assets $ 342364 $ 58,677 $ 401,041 § 345,190

See Notes and Independent Auditor's Report
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THE UPPER ROOM, A FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER
Statements of Financial Position
As of June 30,

Liabilities and Net Assets

Temporarily 2017 2016
Unrestricted Restricted Totals Totals
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 15815 § 0 S 15,815 § 1,453
Other Current Liabilities 1,304 0 1,304 5,482
Accrued Payroll and Taxes 18,003 0 18,003 18,003
Accrued Fundraising Expenses 529 0 529 22,530
Scholarship Payable 1,067 0 1,067 1,177
Total Liabilities 36,718 0 36,718 48,645
Net Assets:
Total Net Assets 305,646 58,677 364,323 296,545
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 342,364 § 58,677 $ 401,041 § 345,190

See Notes and Independent Auditor's Report
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THE UPPER ROOM, A FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER
Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets
For The Year Ended June 30,

Temporarily 2017 2016
Unrestricted Restricted Totals Totals
Revenue and Support:

Grants and Contracts $ 396954 § 58,677 $ 455,631 §$§ 432,519
Contributions 56,481 0 56,481 36,001
Program Revenue 18,861 0 18,861 15,699
Fundraising - Gaming, Net 65,174 0 65,174 20,286
Fundrasing - Auction and Other 52,587 0 52,587 64,044
Rental Income 1,870 0 1,870 3,405
Interest 2,590 0 2,590 2,289
In Kind Contributions 179,716 0 179,716 181,383
Assets Released from Restrictions:

Satisfaction of Program Restrictions 46,804 (46,804) 0 0
Total Revenue and Support 821,037 11,873 832,910 755,626

Expenses:

Program Services 609,165 0 609,165 596,932
General and Administrative 118,317 0 118,317 110,153
Fundraising 37,650 0 37,650 25,843
Total Expenses 765,132 0 765,132 732,928

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets 55,905 11,873 67,778 22,698
Net Assets - Beginning of Period 249,741 46,804 296,545 273,847
Net Assets - End of Period § 305646 S 58,677 $ 364323 § 296,545

See Notes and Independent Auditor's Report
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THE UPPER ROOM, A FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER
Statements of Functional Expenses
For The Year Ended June 30,

Program Management  Fund 2017 2016
Services and General Raising Totals Totals
Expenses:

Salaries and Wages $ 314,078 § 84,641 $ 15,785  $414,504 $397,297
Payroll Taxes 22,649 7,131 1,341 31,121 31,725
Employee Benefits Plan 5,682 6,397 0 12,079 13,654
Supplies 13,600 2,004 18,083 33,687 29,508
Repair and Maintenance 14,247 2,523 0 16,770 15,222
Office 5,338 4,803 1,508 11,649 6,429
Utilities 14,658 1,791 0 16,449 17,120
Professional Fees 18,317 5,916 539 24,772 15,934
Insurance 10,740 2,172 0 12,912 13,547
Postage and Printing 762 791 394 1,947 2,468
Travel and Conferences 4,355 148 0 4,503 4,069
Merchant Account Fees 68 0 0 68 0
Depreciation 4,955 0 0 4,955 4,572
In Kind Expense - Occupancy 73,201 0 0 73,201 64,800
In Kind Expense -

Program and Supplies 106,515 0 0 106,515 116,583
Total Expenses $ 609,165 § 118317 § 37,650 $765,132 §732,928

See Notes and Independent Auditor's Report
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THE UPPER ROOM, A FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER
Statements of Cash Flow
For the Year Ended July 31,

Temporarily 2017 2016
Unrestricted Restricted Totals Totals
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets $ 55905 § 11,873 $ 67,778 $§ 22,698
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation and Amortization 4,955 0 4,955 4,572
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 15,657 0 15,657 (13,450)
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses (51) 0 (51) 615
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 14,362 0 14,362 1,183
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued .
Payroll and Taxes 0 0 0 (21,720)
Increase (Decrease) in Withheld
Payroll Liabilities (4,178) 0 (4,178) 5,482
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued
Fundraising Expenses (22,001) 0 (22,001) 9,896
Increase (Decrease) in Scholarship Payable (110) 0 (110) (264)
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue 0 0 0 (44,860)
Total Adjustments 8,634 0 8,634 (58,546)
Net Cash Flows Provided by
(Used for) Operating Activities 64,539 11,873 76,412 (35,848)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Acquisitions of Fixed Assets (29,582) 0 (29,582) (5,578)
Net Cash Flows Provided by
(Used for) Operating Activities (29,582) 0 (29,582) (5,578)
Net Increase (Decrease) in
Cash and Cash Equivalents 34,957 11,873 46,830 (41,426)
Cash and Equivalents - Beginning of Year 225,748 46,804 272,552 313,978
Cash and Equivalents - End of Year $§ 260,705 § 58,677 $319382 § 272,552

See Notes and Independent Auditors Report
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THE UPPER ROOM, A FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER
Statements of Cash Flow
For the Year Ended July 31,

Temporarily 2017 2016
Unrestricted Restricted Totals Totals
Cash Paid During the Period for:
Interest I 0 8 0 3§ 0

Taxes 3 0 3 0 3 0

Non Cash Transactions During the Period:
In Kind Contributions S 179716 3 0 $179716 181

See Notes and Independent Auditors Report
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THE UPPER ROOM, A FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30,2017 and 2016

Organization and Purpose:

The Upper Room, A Family Resource Center (the Organization) is a tax exempt
organization located in Derry, New Hampshire. The organization’s mission is the strengthen
individuals and families by providing education, services and resources to enable healthy and

self sufficient lives.
The Organization’s programs and services currently consist of the following;
Programs:

1. Greater Derry Family Outreach (GDFO), short term in-home parenting education and
counseling;

2. Families Reaching Our Goals (FROG), a support and play group for parents and children

ages 0 —6;

Teen Information for Parenting Success (TIPS), a support program for young parents;

4, Community Service Learning Opportunities (CSLO), supervised community service
hours for youth;

5. HiSet, collaboration with Pinkerton Academy, the state’s largest high school, for youth
16 — 21 getting ready to take the HISET test in order to achieve a high school
equivalency diploma;

6. Greater Derry Juvenile Diversion (DGJD), an alternative to court for first time juvenile
offenders; ‘

7. Adolescent Wellness Program (AWP), a comprehensive program promoting adolescent
wellness through educations programs (Challenge Course, Take Control), parent support
and access to services;

8. Preventative Counseling, Short term behavioral counseling;

9. Parenting Education — Classes and support groups for parents with children of all ages.
These groups include Active Parenting of Teens Today, 1 2 3 4 Parents! And Active
Parenting for Step Families;

10. Youth Education on Shoplifting (YES) — a program for youth who have shoplifted;

11. Healthy Families America — a program to help expectant mothers and new parents get
their children off to a healthy start.

w

Services:

1. Volunteer/Internship Program — Offering service opportunities to college students
through supervised internships and volunteer opportunities for community members;

2. Food Pantry — Offering food to low income individuals and families. This program is
funded by donations and work is performed by volunteers except for supervisory work.

3. Resource and Referral Services — Providing information and referrals to meet the needs

of the community.

All programs and services adhere to the principles of Family Support America.

PENCHANSKY ¢ CO. ¢
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THE UPPER ROOM, A FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30,2017 and 2016

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Principles:

A. Basis of Presentation

The Organization’s policy is to prepare its financial statements on the accrual basis of
accounting. The accrual basis recognizes income when earned and expenses when they occur.

B. Accounting Principles

The Organization presents its financial statements following the Not for Profit Entities
subtopic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification with respect to financial statements
presentation. Under this topic, the Organization is required to report information regarding its
financial position and activities according to the three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets
temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets. In addition, the
Organization is required to present a statement of cash flows.

Unrestricted Net Assets:
The portion of net assets of a not-for-profit Organization that is neither permanently

restricted nor temporarily restricted by donor imposed stipulations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets:
The portion of net assets of a not-for-profit Organization resulting (a) from contributions

and other inflows of assets whose use by the Organization is limited by donor-imposed
stipulations that either expire by passage of time or can be fulfilled and removed by actions of
the Organization pursuant to those stipulations, (b) from other asset enhancements and
diminishment’s subject to the same kinds of stipulations, and (c) for reclassifications to or from
other classes of net assets as a consequence of donor-imposed stipulations, their expiration by
'passage of time, or their fulfillment’s and removal by actions of the Organization pursuant to
those stipulations.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets:

The portion of net assets of a not-for-profit Organization resulting (a) from contributions
and other inflows of assets whose use by the Organization is limited by donor-imposed
stipulations that neither expire by the passage of time nor can be fulfilled or otherwise removed
by actions of the Organizations, (b) from other asset enhancements and diminishment’s subject
to the same kinds of stipulations, and (c) from reclassifications from or to other classes of net
assets as a consequence of donor-imposed stipulations.

The organization has no permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2017 and 2016.

-Continued on Next Page-
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THE UPPER ROOM, A FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Principles - Continued:

C. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are reported net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. The
allowance is based on management’s estimate of the amount of receivables that will actually be
collected. Management asserts that all receivables at June 30, 2017 and 2016 were collectible
and therefore has not established an allowance for doubtful accounts.

D. Promises to Give

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the organization
that is, in substance, unconditional. Contributions are reported according to donor restrictions.
The organization uses the allowance method to determine uncollectible promises to give. The
allowance is based on prior years’ experience and managements’ analysis of specific promises

made.

E. Income Taxes

The organization has been determined to be a tax exempt organization under Section
501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Form 990, Return of Organization Exempt from
Income Tax, which is an information return, is filed annually

The Organization has evaluated its tax positions for all open tax years. The Organization
is not currently under audit nor has the Organization been contacted by any jurisdiction.
Management believes all tax positions taken would be upheld under examination. No provision
for the effects of uncertain tax positions have been recorded for the years ended June 30, 2017
and 2016. The Organizations informational returns remain open to examination by taxing
authorities for a period of three years.

F. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost at the time of acquisition, or at fair market value if
donated. The Organization capitalizes fixed assets in excess of $1,000. Depreciation is calculated
by various methods over their estimated useful lives. Repairs and maintenance are charged to
operations as incurred, whereas major improvements are capitalized. The estimated useful lives
of the assets are as follows:

Description of Asset Method Estimated
Life
Equipment/Furniture Straight-Line 5 -7 years
Leasehold Improvements Straight-Line 7-20 years
-Continued on Next Page-
-11-
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THE UPPER ROOM, A FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30,2017 and 2016

G. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid
deposits with maturity of three months or less to be cash and/or cash equivalents. At June 30,
2017 and 2016 the Organization had no cash equivalents

H. Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

Management used estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses.

1. Advertising

The Organization uses advertising to promote its programs among the people of the
community. The cost of advertising its programs and fundraising activities are expenses at the
time the advertising takes place.

J. Accrued Compensated Absences

Certain employees of the Organization are entitled to paid vacations, holiday, sick, and
personal days off, based on job classification, length of service, and other factors, The
Organizations policy is to accrue all vacation time as earned, but to recognize the cost of sick
and personal days compensated absences when actually paid to employees. Compensated
absences for employee vacations accrued at June 30, 2017 and 2016 totaled $9,921 and
$11,326, respectively.

K. Functional Expenses

The expenses the Organization incurs while providing its programs are allocated on a
functional basis based on an estimate of personnel time.

L. Donated Materials and Services

The Organization records the value of donated material and services when there is an
objective basis to measure their value. Donated material and services for programs are recorded
as in-kind donations in the financial statements at their estimated fair value on the date of receipt.
Donated items for the annual auction are calculated at their fair value and reported in net
proceeds from fundraising. The Organization also recognizes an estimate of contributed
occupancy expenses since the program and office facility is leased for the Town of Derry at a
rate of $1 per years. Volunteers have donated a total of 3058 hours in assisting the Organization
with its fundraising, special projects and program services. Theses contributed services are
critical to the success of the organization’s mission, but do not meet the criteria for recognition in

the financial statements.
-Continued on next page-
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THE UPPER ROOM, A FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

NOTE 2 - Concentrations:

The Organization received 13% and 19% of it support from one source for the years
ending June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Management does not believe that this relationship

will be terminated.

NOTE 3 - Retirement Plan Expenses

The Organization sponsors a 403(b) pension plan for its employees. Under the plan
employees may voluntarily contribute up to the IRS maximum contribution. The contribution
applies to individual accounts issued to each participant. The Organization does not regularly
contribute to this plan. However, the Organization offers a Retirement Incentive Option to those
employees who contribute a minimum of 3% or more of their annual pay into the Organizations
403(b) plan. After each full years of contributing at least the minimum 3%, the Organization will
deposit $250 into the employee’s retirement plan account for full time employees and $125 for
regular part time employees. Contributions made to the plan by the organization for the years
ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 were $500 in each fiscal year.

NOTE 4 — Fundraising - Gaming:

Fundraising revenue is from regularly scheduled bingo and poker games, is reported net
of fundraising expenses as follows at June 30, 2017:

Bingo Poker Total
Revenue — Gaming $166,431 $39,838 $206,266
Expenses — Gaming (141,095) (0) (141,095)
Net Income — Gaming $25,336 $39,838 $65,174

At June 30, 2016 the Organization held $22,530 in funds for future cash payouts and
taxes. At June 30, 2017 the bingo facilitator has accepted the responsibility for future cash
payouts and taxes.

NOTE 5 — Net Assets:

Unrestricted net assets include net assets include whose use is not restricted by donors.

Temporarily restricted net assets include net assets whose use is restricted by the donor
with specific time or purpose limitations. The Organization’s policy is to report donor restricted
contributions whose restrictions are met in the same reporting period as unrestricted support, as
there is no effect to reported restricted net assets.

-Continued on next page-
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THE UPPER ROOM, A FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

NOTE 5 — Net Assets - continued:

Net assets restricted by time or purpose at June 30, 2017 are:

Teen Information for

Parenting Success $ 20,500
Adolescent Wellness 15,000
Greater Derry Family Outreach 15,000
Equipment Purchase 3,177
Greater Derry Juvenile Diversion 5,000

Total assets restricted by time or
purpose $ 58,677

Note 6 — Lease Agreement:

The Organization occupies office and program space under a lease agreement with the
Town of Derry which requires a payment of $1 each January 1. The term of the lease is for
twenty years through December 31, 2030. All utilities, repairs, maintenance and improvements
are the responsibility of the Organization. The Organization has prepaid the total $20 due under
the terms of the lease.

Note 7 — Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated thru December 10, 2017, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be released. Management has determined that there were
no material events that would require disclosure in the Organizations financial statements
through this date.

-14-
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The UPPER ROOM, a Family Resource Center
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Diane Casale, CPS
603-437-8477 x14
Professional Experience

1993- present The Upper Room, Family Resource Center, Inc. Derry, NH

July 1994- present Program Coordinator, Greater Derry Juvenile Diversion Program
January 2011- present Administrative Coordinator

» Researched, designed and implemented pilot diversion program originally for the Derry District
Court in conjunction with the local police departments, District Court Judge, and Juvenile Service
Officers. This program offers an alternative to court for appropriate juvenile offenders. This is
accomplished with the aid of volunteer members of the community, Community Review Team
(CRT), who agree to set up contractual conditions. Currently responsible for all comprehensive
family intakes, coordination of services, case management, training and coordination of
volunteers, facilitation of youth and CRT meetings and final closing of the youths case. The
reporting of data and statistics to all funding sources and to the agency’s development division is
an important part of the position. Continuous evaluation of the program models and outcomes.

e Incorporated the following resources for the community as the need became apparent:

Adolescent Wellness Program a comprehensive wellness program which focuses on
promoting healthy adolescent behavior by providing youth with prevention and intervention
services related to substance use and/or anger and parents with timely and effective support.
AWP increases youth knowledge of the consequences of substance use, increase skills to
handle anger appropriately, and increase parent’s ability to cope with child’s anger or
substance use resulting in an increase number of youth living healthier lives. AWP utilizes the
following three components:

1. Challenge Course — a psycho-educational program, using a group format, which
provides adolescents an opportunity to learn more about alcohol and other drugs
while they explore their personal relationship with substances.

2. Take Control — Educational program, using a group format, providing adolescents
an opportunity to learn about anger and how it affects their lives.

3. UR Parents — A facilitated group providing information and support to parents
who face the challenges of raising teenagers in today’s society. Multiple topics.

Y.E.S. (Shoplifter's Alternative) — An educational program, using a group format,
providing youth the opportunity for youth to learn the effect shoplifting has on their lives
and the community as a whole.

CSLO (Community Service-Learning Opportunities) — Opportunity for youth who need
to meet community service obligations to learn about and help others within their
community.

e Administrative Coordinator: Became the Administrative Coordinator for the agency in 2011 with
several areas of responsibility.
o IT/Technology- responsible for all repairs, maintenance and upgrading of
major equipment i.e. computers, phones, copier, TVs etc.
o Supervision of Database and Marketing Specialist, as well as, AWP
Coordinator.
o Coordinate the volunteer and internship program for the agency.



Accomplishments

o 22 years coordinating Greater Derry Juvenile Diversion

» Incorporation of community resources:
o Challenge Course
o Y.E.S. (Youth Education on Shoplifting)

+ Development and creation of community resources:
o Take Control
o CSLO (Community Service Learning Opportunities)

« Applied for, through the Center for Excellence Service to Science, Take Control being recognized
as a Promising Practice in the State of NH. Received endorsement in October 2012. Take Control
was endorsed by the NH Expert Panel as evidence-based program August 9, 2013.

 Initial accreditation of Greater Derry Juvenile Diversion program with the State of NH Judicial
Branch in 2011, and maintaining of that accreditation since.

Professional Memberships

» New Hampshire Juvenile Court Diversion Network, Vice Chair (present) Chair (2005-2007)
I have worked on the following endeavors for the NHICDN:

Data Collection and evaluation-1996
Recidivism Study- 1997 to 2005 (continued with the Derry Family Court to-date)
JusticeWorks, UN.H. Durham — 1999
Data Collection and Reporting- 2003 to 2004 Worked collaboratively with police departments,
Department of Safety, Administrative Office of the Courts and Division of Juvenile Justices
Services in gathering statistical and demographic information to be reported to the federal
government regarding crimes and detention in the state of New Hampshire.
Accreditation Committee, Chair- 2010-present
Strategic Planning Committee- 2013-present

Prevention Certification Board of NH, Treasurer — (2006-2013)

o Citizen’s Advisory Board/ NH State Prison for Women-Goffstown (2000-2013)
o Challenge Course Advisory Committee Member, Committee Chair (Former)

o State Advisory Group- (2013-2015)

Education

o Hesser College- Nashua

Associates in Computer Science-  January 1983
o Lesley College- Boston

Courses related to Human Services- 1992- 1993
o New Hampshire Technical Institute- Concord

Paralegal Certificate- August, 2001

* Guardian Ad Litem -NHTI-Concord  October 2005

o Nashua Community College September 2009 to June 2011
Studied in Liberal Arts

Concentration in Peace and Social Justice

Volunteer Experience/Trainings



Challenge Course, Facilitator/Coordinator
SASSI Administration and Scoring, Administrator
(Substance Abuse Subtle Screening Inventory)
GAINQ certified (Global Appraisal of Individual Needs-Quick)
Certified Prevention Specialist, since June 2006
CPI —Nonviolent Crisis Intervention



Kelsey Myers

EDUCATION
Southern New Hampshire University Manchester, NH
Bachelor of Science, Justice Studies | Minor in Business December 2016
GPA 3.8, President’s List | Justice Studies Association | Nu lota Honor Society

New Hampshire Technical Institute Concord, NH
Associate in Science, Criminal Justice May 2015
GPA 3.93, Dean’s List | Criminal Justice Club | Phi Theta Kappa Honor Society

RELATED EXPERIENCE
Youth Specialist, NH-JAG, Manchester, NH April 2017-Present
¢ Provide support to students 16-24 through one-on-one guidance and counseling, mentoring and assistance with life skills; assist
with test preparation, identifying training programs and jobs, and enrolling in college
o Organize materials and enter student information into the database to ensure accuracy and create a structured environment; serve
as a liaison to schedule appointments with organizations and students
o Offer continued follow-up services to students to ensure long-term success and program completion

Volunteer, The Upper Room, Derry, NH May 2015-Present
o Serve as an integral member of a team supporting participants in The Greater Derry Juvenile Diversion Program dedicated to
empowering youth to make responsible decisions while offering an alternative to court intervention
o Communicate with youth to develop an appropriate contract and determine participation in activities such as restitution,
community service, and referrals to alternative programs
» Ensure participants complete assigned activities and organize documentation to close case files

Intern, Sununu Youth Services Center (SYSC), Manchester, NH May 2016-August 2016
o Interacted with and observed youth ages 13-17, worked closely with youth counselors, unit managers, treatment coordinators, a
Bureau Chief, JPPO’s, and parents to gain an in-depth understanding of the Center’s operations
» Attended treatment plan meetings, transcribed notes, and typed updated reports; updated notes in SYSC system database;
observed intake information, an exit, and completed exit guidelines; learned wanding process and weekly grading procedure
o Gathered material for support groups and attended parent’s support group; attended parole board hearings and court proceedings

Intern, Webster House, Manchester, NH June 2014-July 2014
e Interacted one-on-one with youth ages 11-17 to gather information and complete intake interviews, exit paperwork, and
social/phycho evaluations; processed paperwork in order to organize records and confirm accurate documentation
e Supervised and monitored activities to provide structure to residents within a safe and caring environment

CERTIFICATIONS/SKILLS
Certified Victim Witness Advocate: Completed training to support crime victims and witnesses to ensure that both parties are treated
with compassion, dignity, and fairness
Technology/Languages: QuickBooks, Eteams, Microsoft Word, PowerPoint and Excel; moderate Spanish

ADDITIONAL EXPERIENCE

Office Assistant/Assembler, Hamilton Precision, LLC, Laconia, NH November 2016-April 2017
o Utilized QuickBooks to generate packing slips, invoices, purchase orders, do pay role, review pricing, and pay bills
e Communicated via phone and email to receive and place orders; read blue prints to assemble, package, and label parts for delivery

Transfer Student Worker/Assistant, SNHU Office of Transfer Admissions, Manchester, NH September 2015-December 2016
e Answered multi-line phone system and responded to emails professionally to provide exceptional service to students and visitors
e Interacted with incoming transfer students to share information and help them feel welcome to the campus community

Lead Sales Clerk, Shooters Outpost, Hooksett, NH December 2012-November 2016
e Provided assistance and shared product knowledge to up to 250 customers during high volume shifts; completed and verified
federal forms to ensure proper documentation according to state and federal laws, then called to report information
» Oversaw and managed more than $4,000 in cash per shift; ordered, organized and stocked inventory to ensure sales were met
s Helped to create a training manual, train incoming cashiers; developed a manageable schedule for cashiers
¢ Collaborated with coworkers to apply problem-solving skills in order to resolve technical and customer conflict



Sheila Allen

PROFESSIONAL OBJECTIVE
To acquire a position with The Upper Room

EDUCATION
Master of Education, School Counseling, Rivier College, Nashua, NH May 2012
Graduate Certificate, Multicultural Counseling, Rivler College, Nashua, NH January 2012

Master of Arts Degree, Health Care Administration, Framingham State College, Framingham, MA
Bachelor of Science Degree, Health Sciences, Boston University, Boston, MA

LICENSURES

School Counselor, Grades K-12, New Hampshire and Massachusetts

ASCA "School Counseling Legal and Ethical Specialist”- certification in process
Certification, Family Mediation and Juvenile Services, Atkinson, NH April 2009

HIGHLIGHTED ACCOMPLISHMENTS

e Frequently sought out by students due to established bond and building of trust

o Develop partnerships with students so that they recognize the value of participation in individual and group work

e Focus on supporting students to identify personal strengths, values, and skills, knowing it enhances academic, social
and emotional abilities

e Employ different strategies to individualize counseling approach in recognition of students’ needs and goals

e Able to identify students in need of specific learning supports and employ counseling skills through collaboration with
parents, student and others in successful implementation of these

SCHOOL COUNSELING EXPERIENCE

Timberlane Regional School District, NH September 2011-May 2012
Intern, Sandown North Elementary School, Sandown, NH

Participated in weekly universal and target team meetings to develop school-wide initiatives addressing specific behavior
concerns as well as identifying counseling needs of individual students; Led and co-led rigorous classroom guidance programs;
Responsible for individual student case load; Participated in special education process.

e Directly involved in identifying student behaviors and rewarding or educating students to remediate behaviors;
comfortable with providing redirection and education

e Led groups of 3-5 students needing support with social skills and sportsmanship through use of role playing

e Co-led a writing group for students with social challenges, helping participants to identify personal goals and values; as
a result a student emerged as leader in other settings

¢ Led groups for students needing help with regulation of emotion and conflict resolution; executed an activity to design
a “remote control” that served as a reminder of learned strategies

e Supported students to implement accommodations defined in 504 plans and IEPs in situations during individual and
group counseling, daily learning situations and statewide testing

Special Project:
¢ Compiled resource book containing more than 100 classroom lesson plans and activities consistent with guidance and

school curriculums on such units as bullying, feelings, peer pressure, relationship development, character development
and diversity



Sheila Allen resume 2

SCHOOL COUNSELING EXPERIENCE
Intern, Timberlane Regional Middle School, Plaistow, NH
Participated in weekly team meetings to develop and implement guidance programs and identify students in need of support;
Led and co-led groups; participated in special education process

e Co-led daily group focusing on organizational skills and social skills specific to middle school age students

e Significant experience working with Adjustment Counselor and students identified as Emotionally Handicapped (EH)

which informed my understanding of challenges managed by these students

e Improved counseling skills and gained better understanding of gender issues through observation of student
counseled about sexual identity
Attended parent meetings to review special education assessments and development of 504 plans and IEPs
Participated in organization of parent open house and description of services provided by guidance department
Experience with Powerschool and its utilization for scheduling and data collection
Experience with transitioning students to and from middle school

intern, Timberlane Regional High School, Plaistow, NH
Participated in weekly department meetings, special education team meetings and parent meetings

e Acquired greater understanding of the needs of high school students by working individually with each guidance
counselor and individual students

Participated in meetings to organize and prepare for student course selection process
Learned various organizational systems to manage students’ course selection and credits relative to graduation
requirements and secondary educational goals and career plans

e Participated in school lock-down drill

OTHER STUDENT EXPERIENCE

Youth Committee Member, Temple Emanu-E|, Haverhill, MA September 2013-Present
¢ Work with middle and high school-age students to plan, schedule and organize events at local, regional
and national level

e Support students in maintaining expectations regarding responsibility, accountability and communication

Teacher, Temple Emanu-El, Haverhill, MA September 2007-Present
¢ Held this position consistently with the exception of the 2011-2012 school year
e Teach 5" and 6" grade classes by developing classroom lessons facilitating discussion in a respectful
atmosphere on curriculum pertaining to understanding values, how to make choices and responsibility
e Continue to sharpen classroom management strategies, including accommodating students with special
needs such as Aspergers, Autism, ADD, Mood Disorders and various learning styles

Tutor, Up Academy Lawrence Middle School, Lawrence, MA December 2012-June 2013

e Acquired greater understanding and appreciation of cuitural and socio-economic diversity, especially as effects
the education process

Family Mediator, Family Mediation and Juvenile Services, Atkinson, NH 2009-2010

e Worked with co-mediators and families of middle and high school-age children to implement strategies to better
manage family conflicts and improve communication skills

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS

e American School Counselor Association (ASCA)
e New Hampshire School Counseling Association (NHSCA)



Brenda Guggisberg

bguggisberg@urteachers.org

603-244-9368

Experience:

August 2016 - Current
Executive Director

Oversight of operations and HR functions

Oversight of PR and agency relations

Develop and manage budgets

Oversee grants and development

Development of staff and programs

Oversight of building site, safety and improvement plans
Advocate and support children and families, including
development of relationships with those entities that adapt
policy that impacts the lives of children and families
Development of Board, and Strategic Plans

Develop and maintain strong relationships with funding sources.
Develop relationships with community partners

Collaborate to provide services that are unique and meet the
community needs

Interim Executive Director November 2015-August 2016

September 2006 —~November 2015
HiSet Administrative Program Coordinator/Guidance Counselor

Coordinate supports and services for students

Develop program policies and practices to meet the needs of
Pinkerton Academy Options program , and The Upper Room
Facilitate and coordinate intake and assessments for incoming
students seeking HiSet/High School Equivalency services, to
address educational needs and to manage personal barriers to a
students success so that they may more fully participate
Foster services with Employment Security and other
employment agencies

Coordinate Life Skills /Career Pathways component of the
program to provide basic competencies for young adults, to
include career exploration and college investigation

Develop relationships with Community College Admissions, for
ease of support to students

Collaborate with other area services when students have
additional needs outside the program

Develop program to meet the needs of the students

Provide supervision to classroom instructor and tutors,
including staff development and training needed to support staff
in the program

Market and promote the program

Analyze and assess curriculum to develop strong test
preparation programming



e Offer pretesting and screening services to all interested students

e  Provide referrals and consults for students requiring additional
supports to obtain their HiSet/High School Equivalency

e Facilitate the HiSet/High school Equivalency Team meetings

e  Provide documentation and program reports to secure funding

e Collaborate with other HiSet programs to develop positive
systems for students coming in to program, and appropriate
referrals to area schools or agencies

December 2011-June 2016
Administrative Coordinator/Parent Educator

e Facilitate Parenting classes and groups
e  Offer parenting resources and referrals based on parent need

Administrative Operations Coordinator 2011- 6/2016

Food Pantry
Building Operations/Maintenance/Contracts
Loss Management/Safety

December 2002 - July 2009 The Upper Room, Family Resource Center
Program Coordinator TIPS (Teen Parenting Program)

Facilitate school and community based educational program for
pregnant or parenting teens and young adults

Offer individual support to people seeking resources and referrals
Coordinate, and organize a monthly “Learn and Shop” event for teens
participating in the program

Facilitate/coordinate prevention workshops for teens and/or their
parents

Assist individuals in seeking the resources they need to be most effective
as parents and students

Implement and facilitate a teen pregnancy and parenting curriculum to
teens participating in the program

Oversee a children’s enrichment segment of the program, so that
children of the teen parents are offered enriching activities, reading, and
opportunities for group play

Supervise childcare staff and volunteers.

Complete grant reports and documentation requirements to secure
funding

Facilitate collaboration group to support teen parents in the Southern
NH region

Provide the educational information for Pinkerton Academy to provide
an approved course for study at Pinkerton

Education: 1995 M. Ed. Guidance and Counseling, Russell Sage College, Troy, NY
1987 B.S. Psychology, Minor: Early Childhood Education,
Elmira College, Elmira NY



KATHRYN BRIGGS
kate.briggs@gmail.com
617.755.0555

SUMMARY

Communications professional with extensive publishing, production, and project management experience. Strong
writing, organizational and planning skills deployed with enthusiasm, with a focus on deadlines. Skilled in Spanish.
Track record of completing projects on schedule and on budget. Earned social media certificate November 2015.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Editor, Somerville, MA 1999—present
Manage copyediting and proofreading projects for diverse client list, including: textbooks, ancillaries, and
catalogues for Cambridge University Press, Cengage Learning, Houghton Mifflin College Division, Thomson
Heinle, Holt McDougal, O’Reilly and Associates, McGraw-Hill, Pearson Education, eXplio.com, Wiley
Publishing, and Pogue Press. Subjects include Spanish, English as a Second Language, business, psychology,
computer programs, biology, educational pedagogy, political science, and U.S. History.

e Developed and edited all content for Student Activities Manual for Barceld, Nuestras Culturas.

¢ Edited content and proofread 500-page U.S. History college textbook HIST; wrote all glossary entries.

e Copyedited Frommer's Moscow & St. Petersburg, 3rd edition.

Massachusetts Institute of Technology Annual Fund, Cambridge, MA

Assistant Director, Marketing and Participation 2011-2014
Managed direct mail solicitations for the MIT Annual Fund: project management, production and proofreading of
20+ projects per year. Shared supervisory responsibility of a production assistant.

e Highest visibility project: annual letter from MIT’s President to all living MIT alumni. Coordinated
follow-up e-solicitations for each mailing. Brainstormed solutions to creative projects to achieve Fund
goals.

e Wrote solicitations: letter to parents of incoming students, letter from Fund Board chairman, postcard
profiles of current students, novel uses for address labels.

e Analyzed the performance of direct mail pieces and determined return on investment.

Brandeis University, Waltham, MA

Department Coordinator 20102011
Supported two busy Deans in the Office of Study Abroad and the office of Academic Services. Scheduled
meetings, sent out student records, did the intake for 600 students to study abroad in Studio Abroad database.

Pearson Education, Curriculum Group, Boston, MA

Short-term Project Marketing Specialist 2008-2010
Gathered cover and author information for 17,000 books to enter the ONIX system to be sold on Amazon.com; that
information then populated Pearson database system. Supplied production assistance to busy Marketing Director;
prepared for Summer Sales Meeting; created Summer Sales Calendar.

Editor, World Languages
Edited Level 1 copyright update for Realidades high school Spanish textbook. Modified Realidades textbook
activities for digital path project realidades.com. Managed freelancers to write and proofread Ecce Romani Latin

student website.
¢ Collected and organized all content for long-awaited Ecce Romani Latin teacher website.

¢ Wrote script for annual employee recognition awards ceremony.



Holt McDougal, a division of Houghton Mifflin Harcourt, Boston, MA
Production Coordinator 20042008
Scheduled and coordinated the workflow of three departments and ten vendors to produce high school mathematics
and Spanish textbooks, workbooks, and digital learning products. Provided guidance to domestic and Indian
editorial and composition vendors.
¢ Implemented schedules and tracked 100+ separate Math ancillary components from manuscript to
published book.
® Managed the production of 45 Spanish workbooks under tight time constraints.
¢ Planned and coordinated seven employee engagement activities through Editorial Advisory Board
position.

PRESENTATIONS

INTIX Presenter: designed and presented seminar: “Engage with Email” at professional development conference,
January 2006

EDUCATION

BA, Spanish Language and Literature and Art History, New York University, College of Arts and Science
New York University in Madrid, 1 semester

TRAVEL

Extensive travel includes Kazakhstan, Turkmenistan, Mexico City, Lima, Moscow, St. Petersburg, Rio, Seoul,
Kyoto, Eastern Europe.

COMMUNITY WORK

Docent, Boston By Foot, 2013-present: give 90 minute tours of Back Bay.
Tour Guide, Boston Ballet, 2005-2013: gave backstage tours of the Opera House and Boston Ballet studios.

COURSES

Social Media Certificate, Middlesex Community College, November 2015: 8-week course covering business uses
of LinkedIn, Pinterest, Facebook, and Twitter.



Education

Experience

Trainings

Cheryl A Fruin
(603) 437-8477 x15

Rivier College Nashua, NH (2006-2008)
Master of Arts in Teaching Mathematics
4.0 GPA

University of Lowell Lowell, MA

Bachelor of Science in Business Administration
Magna cum Laude

National Merit Scholarship Recipient

The Upper Room Derry, NH (January 2017-Present)
Adolescent Wellness Program Coordinator
Rejuven8 Program Coordinator

The Upper Room Derry, NH (2016-Present)
Youth Educational Shoplifting Program Facilitator

The Upper Room Derry, NH (2015-2017)
Mathematics Tutor, HISET Program

Pinkerton Academy, Derry, NH (2010-2015)
Mathematics Teacher
Algebra 1 and Integrated 3

PBIS committee member (2011-2015)

Assisted in the implementation of the PBIS

(Positive Behavioral Interventions and Support) framework.
Collected data to guide the team'’s direction and focus.

Technical Liaison to the Mathematics Department (2014-2015)
Assisted staff members with technical questions regarding
Software. Demonstrated the use of new technologies.
Planned and executed workshops regarding technology in the
Classroom.

Londonderry High School, Londonderry, NH (2008-2010)
Mathematics Teacher
Pre-Algebra and Algebra 1

Londonderry Middle School, Londonderry, NH (2008)
Student Internship
Mathematics Grade 7



SASSI Clinical Interpretation

SASS! Administration & Scoring

SBIRT

Positive Behavioral Interventions and Support

Standards of Quality for Family Strengthening & Support
NH Providers Association Confidentiality Training
Introduction to Protective Factors Framework
Motivational Interviewing

Substance Related and Addictive Disorders

SMART Goals

Substance Abuse Prevention Skills



Elizabeth Ryan

Experience

MAY 2017 - PRESENT
The Upper Room, A Family Resource Center - Finance Administrator

Developed and managed $800,000 operating budget.

Advised Executive Director on program revenue and expectations.

Recorded and reconciled all accounts receivables/payables, payroll, bookkeeping and
multiple bank accounts in QuickBooks.

Generated invoices for grantors.

Processed payroll and deposits.

Performed HR functions, including working toward solutions for staff concerns and
managing personnel files.

Authored the agency’s finance manual.

MAY 2016 - MARCH 2017
McDonough, O’Shaughnessy, Whaland and Meagher, P.L.L.C. - Bookkeeper

Maintained accounts receivable, accounts payable, and ran financial reports.

Reconciled bank and credit card accounts.

Entered attorney time with speed and accuracy and generated client invoices.

Uploaded client invoices to various online platforms for payment.

Processed payroll, bank deposits, and attorney payouts.

Assisted Managing Member by performing paralegal tasks, such as reviewing documents
for accuracy.

Instrumental in the hiring of new employees and equipment purchases.

Increased overall office efficiency by introducing new systems of file maintenance for cases.

JANUARY 2016 - JANUARY 2018
Chickering & Company, P.L.L.C., Certified Public Accountants - Office Administrator

Assisted accountant in all office functions.
Prepared client tax return packages.



Skills

e Thorough knowledge of bookkeeping principles.

e Detail oriented nature integral to critically analyzing invoices and documents for
discrepancies.

e Positive attitude and excellent interpersonal skills which allow me to be an involved and
effective team player.

e Proficiency with computers and Microsoft Office Products {Word, Excel, Outlook),
QuickBooks, and P.C. Law.

Training
Mastering QuickBooks Level 1 Class - July 2017

Advanced Microsoft Excel Techniques - February 2018

References

Bob Meagher, Managing Member of McDonough, O'Shaughnessy, Whaland and Meagher, P.L.L.C
| (603) 668-8300 | rmeagher@lawfirmnh.com --

Jefferson Chickering, Firm Principal of Chickering & Company, Certified Public Accountants,
P.LL.C|603-621-9156 | jefferson@chickeringcpa.com




CONTRACTOR NAME: The Upper Room, A Family Resource Center

Key Personnel- SAG

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Diane Casale Program Coordinator 62,400 45% 15,000

Brenda Guggisberg Executive 70,720 1.4% 1000

Director/Supervision

Andrea Younie Database Specialist 6,656 2.6% 183

Kate Briggs Marketing Director 22,880 2.2% 503

Cheryl Fruin Y_.E.S. Facilitator 750 22% 750

Kelsey Myers CSLO Facilitator 11,700 22% 2,574

Elizabeth Ryan Financial Administrator 19,760 7% 1523

21,433




